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INDOSOLAR LIMITED
CIN: L18101DL2005PLC134879

Regd. Office: C-12, Friends Colony (East), New Delhi-110065
Tel.: 011-26841375, Email cirp.indosolar@gmail.com, Website: www.indosolar.co.in

NOTICE

Background:

The Company & undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the provisions of
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (Insolvency Code).Insolvency proceedings against the
Company was initiated by the Lenders/Financial Institutions in October, 2018 and the application for
Insolvency Proceedings against the Company was admitted by the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal (NCLT), New Delhi bench vide its order dated 12th April, 2019. Pursuant to the initiation of
CIRP, vide aforesaid order, the adjudicating authority appointed Mr. Gulshan Gaba, as Interim
Resolution Professional(IRP) to carry the functions as mentioned under the Code and later on Committee
of Creditors (CoC) approved the appointment of Mr. Gulshan Gaba, the IRP as Resolution Professional
(RP). During the continuation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) the powers of the
Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended effective from the CIRP Commencement date and
such powers along with the management of affairs of the Company are vested with the Resolution
Professional, viz., Mr. Gulshan Gaba.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT 14™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE
MEMBERS OF INDOSOLAR LIMITED (A COMPANY UNDER CORPORATE
INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS) WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY, THE 28TH DAY
OF SEPTEMBER, 2020 AT 11:30 A.M. THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (“VC») /
OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS (“OAVM”) TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS

(S).

In view of extra-ordinary circumstances, consideration of Special Business is required prior to
Ordinary Business:

SPECIAL BUSINESS

1 To consider, ratify and confirm appointment of Auditor n casual vacancy;

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(8) and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and approval of the Resolution
Professional of the Company on recommendation of Committee of Creditors, appointment of M/s
ALK G & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 002688N) having its office at 11-
CSC, DDA Market A-Block, SaraswatiVihar, Delhi - 110034, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company
w.e.f. 16" August, 2019 till the conclusion of ths Annual General Meeting of the Company, to fill
the casual vacancy caused by the Resignation of M/s. Arun K Gupta and Associates, Chartered
Accountants be and i hereby ratified and confirmed.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT appointment of M/s AK.G & Associates, Chartered Accountants
to conduct the Statutory Audit for the Financial Year 2018-19 at such remuneration plus goods and
service tax, as may be approved by the Resolution Professionalof the Company be and i hereby ratified
and confirmed.”
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ORDINARY BUSINESS:

2 To receive, consider, and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2019 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors
and the Auditors thereon:

3. To appoint the Statutory Auditors of the Company:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force), the Company hereby appoint M/s A K.G & Associates, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 002688N), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company
from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the Conclusion of 19t Annual
General Meeting or as per tenure decided by the resolution applicant under the resolution
plan to be approved by the Adjudicating Authority, whichever & earlier at such remuneration
as may be mutually agreed between the Resolution Professional/Board of Directors of the
Company and the Statutory Auditors.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and & hereby
authorized to do all such act(s), deed(s) and thing(s) as it may deem necessary, proper and/or
expedient as required by the Resolution Professional for implementing and giving effect to
the aforesaid resolution.”

For and on Behalf of

INDOSOLAR LIMITED
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Place: New Delhi Sd/-
Date: 31-08-2020 (Hulas RahulGupta)
Managing Director
DIN: 00297722

Add: C - 12, Friends Colony
New Delhi 110065



Note :

1

Amid widespread situation of pandemic Covid-19 and requirement of social distancing for
its containment, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular dated May
5, 2020 read with circulars dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 (collectively referred to
as “MCA Circulars”) and other applicable Circulars issued by The Securities and Exchange
Board of India (“SEBI”) has permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
through Video Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means (VC/OAVM), without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the
Company & being held through VC/OAVM.

For this purpose, Link Intime India Private Limited (LIIPL) has been engaged for
facilitating participation in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility, e-voting including
remote e-voting duringthe AGM. The instructions for participation by members are given
in the subsequent paragraphs. Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

The relevant explanatory statement in accordance with section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 setting out the material facts in respect of the Special Business s annexed hereto.

The operations of the Company was closed in FY 2018-19 and resumption of the same & not
certain as on date thus Cost Auditor was not appointed by Resolution Professional / Board
of Directors for FY 2019-20.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member &k entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote at the AGM and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since ths AGM is
being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of
Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by
the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance
Slp are not annexed to ths Notice.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM the route map & not annexed to ths notice.

ELECTRONIC DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT AND PROCESS FOR
REGISTRATION OF EMAIL ADDRESS

1.

In compliance with the previously mentioned MCA Circulars and applicable circulars
issued by SEBI, owing to the difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of the
Annual Report, the Annual Report along with AGM notice are being sent only through
electronic mode to members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/
Depositories.

Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2018-19 will also be available on the
Company’s websites i.e. www.indosolar.co.in and on the website of the Stock Exchanges
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i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and
www. nseindia.com respectively, and on the website of Link Intime India Private Limited
www. linkintime.co.in

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members holding shares in physical mode and who have
not updated their email addresses with the Company are requested to update their email
addresses by writing to RTA at delhi@linkintime.co.in or shikha.karakoti@linkintime.co. in
or sunil.mishra@linkintime.co.in along with the copy of the signed request letter mentioning
the name, folio number and address of the member, self-attested copy of the PAN card, and
self-attested copy of any document (eg.: Driving License, Election Identity Card, Passport)
in support of the address of the Member. Members holding shares in dematerialised mode
are requested to register/update their email addresses with the relevant Depository
Participants. In case of any queries / difficulties in registering the email address, Members
may write to delhi@linkintime.co.in  or  shikha.karakoti@linkintime.co.in.  or
sunil.mishra@linkintime.co.in. Members can also update their email address and other
details through a portal of our RTA at
https:/linkintime.co.infEmailReg/Email_Register.html

PROCEDURE FOR JOINING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM

10.

1

Members will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through
the  LIIPL  e-voting system. Members may access the same at
https://instavote. linkintime.co.in under shareholders/members login by using the remote e-
voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/members login
where the EVSN of Company will be displayed.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops and internet connection with
a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the
Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/ OAVM will be made available
on first come first served basis. The large Shareholders, if any, (Shareholders holding 2%
or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, Auditors etc. can attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come
first served basis.

For the smooth conduct of the AGM, the Company reserves the right to restrict the
number of questions and number of speakers as appropriate.

PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING THE AGM

14. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time,
and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Liting Regulations, the Members are provided with the
facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e-voting services provided by Link
Intime India Private Limited. The instructions for e-voting are given herein below.
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16.

17.

The members whose name appears nthe Register of Members/List of Beneficial owners as
on Friday, 28" August, 2020 i.e. cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the resolutions set forth
in this notice. A person who s not a member as on cut- off date should read this notice of
AGM for information purpose only.

Members may cast their vote on electronic voting systems from any place (remote e-voting).
The remote e-voting period begins at 09:00 A.M. on Friday, 25t September, 2020 and will
end at 05:00 P.M. on Sunday, 27th September, 2020. During this period members of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-
off date of 215t September, 2020 may cast their vote electronically.

The manner for remote e-voting/e-voting durng the AGM wil be as follows:

Process and manner for attending the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL.: https:/instameet.linkintime.co.in
» Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: -

A. Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digt Demat Account No. or Folio No
» Shareholders/ members holding shares n CDSL demat account shall provide 16
Digit Beneficiary ID
« Shareholders/ members holding shares n NSDL demat account shall provide 8
Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
+ Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio
Number registered with the Company

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not
updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence
number provided to you, if applicable.

C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobie number.

D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company.

» Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked
for the meeting).

Please refer the instructions (annexure) for the software requirements and Kindly ensure to

install the same on the device which would be used to attend the meeting. Please read the

instructions carefully and participate in the meeting. You may also call upon the InstaMeet

Support Desk for any support on the dedicated number provided to you in the instruction/

InstaMEET website.

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting

through InstaMeet:

1

Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request by
sending a request at cs.indosolarlitd@gmail.com between 09:00 A.M. on Friday, 4th
September, 2020 till 11:00 AM on Monday, 7th September, 2020 along with their details
(Name, Demat account no./folio no. and registered email address)
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2. Shareholders wil get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision
made by the client.

3 Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the
meeting.

4. Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the
meeting.

5. Pleasegremember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by
switching on video mode and audio of your device.

Shareholders are requested to speak ony when moderator of the meeting/ management will
announce the name and serial number for speaking.

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to VVote during the Annual General Meeting
through InstaMeet:

Once the electronic woting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting,
shareholders/ members who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast
the vote as under:

i On the Shareholders VVC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”

2 Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered
mobile number/ registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET and
click on'Submit'.

3 After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the
option “Favour/ Against” for vating.

4 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the
number of shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under
‘Favour/Against'.

5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have
decided to vote, click on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to
confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, click on “Back” and
accordingly modify your vote.

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or
change your vote subsequently.

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through
InstaMeet facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting
and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility
during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to
the Annual General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the Annual General
Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the
meeting.

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops
connected through broadband for better experience.

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS
download stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. Please note that Shareholders/
Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting via
Mobik Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. It



therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of
aforesaid glitches.

In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an
email to instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175.

InstaMeet Support Desk
Link Intime India Private Limited

Annexure

Guidelines to attend the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.: InstaMEET

For a smooth experience of viewing the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
InstaMEET, shareholders/ members who are registered as speakers for the event are requested

to download and install the Webex application in advance by following the instructions as
under:

a) Please download and install the Webex application by clicking onthe Ink_
https://www.webex.com/downloads.html/

wataoom ww = £
Sounions | ANNA DB PR PIG LM O wu ma g m
Q O
Webex Meetings Webex Teams
Looking for real time video conferencing? Looking for messaging and team collaboration?
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Step 1 Enter your First Name, Last Name and Email ID and click on Join Now.

1(A) Ifyou have already installed the Webexapplication on yourdevice, join the meeting by clicking on Join
Now

1(B) If Webexapplication is not installed,a newpage willappeargiving you an optionto either Add Webex
to chrome or Run a temporary application.
Click on Run a temporary application, an exe file will be downloaded. Click on this exe file to run the
application and join the meeting by clicking on Join Now
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Or
a) If you do not want to download and install the Webex application, you may join the meeting by
following the process mentioned as under:

[
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Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL.: https:/instavote.linkintime.co.in
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Those who are first time users of LIIPL e -voting platform or holding shares in physical mode hae
to mandatorily generate their own Password, as under:

» Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details: -

B. User ID: Enter your User ID

« Shareholders/ members holkding shares n CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit
Beneficiary ID

« Shareholders/ members holding shares n NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP
ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

« Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio Number
registered with the Company

B.PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated
their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/Company shall use the sequence number provided
to you, if applicable.

C.DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your
DP / Company - n DD/MM/YYY'Y format)

D.Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with
your DP/Company.
« Shareholders/ members holding shares n CDSL demat account shall provide either ‘C’ or ‘D’,
above
« Shareholders/ members holding shares n NSDL demat account shall provide ‘D’,above
« Shareholders/ members holding shares n physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall
provide their Foio number in ‘D’ above

» Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one
special Character (@'#$&%*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter).

» Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated).

NOTE: If Shareholders/ members are holding shares in demat form and have registered on to e-Voting
system of LIIPL.: https:/instavote.linkintime.co.in, and/or voted on an earlier event of any company then
they can use their existing password to logn.

2. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab.

3. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on
‘Submit’.

4. After successful logn, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’
icon.

5. E-voting page will appear.

6. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option
‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution detalils, click on the ‘View
Resolution’ fie link).

10
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7. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Yes’, else to change your
vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.

8. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are
required to log on the e-voting system of LIIPL at https:/instavote.linkintime.co.in and
register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They are also
required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority
letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised
representative(s) inPDF format inthe ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login
for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

If you have forgotten the password:
o Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’
o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and Click
on ‘Submit’.

« In case shareholders/ members s having valid email address, Password will be sent to his /
her registered e-mail address.

« Shareholders/ members can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information
about the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account
Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above.

« The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character
(@'#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter.

« It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for
voting on the resolutions contained in the Notice.

During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have
voted on the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”.

Shareholders/ members holding multiple folios/de mat account shall choose the voting process
separately for each of the folios/demat account.

In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding e-voting, they may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and InstaVote e-Voting manual available at
https//instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section or send an email to
enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 —4918 6000.

InstaVote Support Desk

Link Intime India Private Limited
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GENERAL INFORMATION

18.

19.

20.

21

22.

23.

24,

The Company has appointed Mr. Sanjeev Pandey partner of M/s. SSPK & Co., Company
Secretaries or n his absence any partner of M/s. SSPK & Co., who in the opinion of the
Company & a duly qualified person, as a Scrutinizer who will collate the electronic voting
process in a fair and transparent manner.

The results of the electronic voting shall be declared i the stock exchanges after conclusion
of AGM. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the
Company’s  website www.indosolar.co.in and on the website of LIIPL
www. linkintime.co.in immediately. The Company shall simultaneously forward the results
to National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited, where the shares of the
Company are listed.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed
companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from, April 1, 2019,
except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of
this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio
management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting
their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company or Company’s
Registrars and Transfer Agents (RTA), Link Intime India Private Ltd. for assistance in this
regard.

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, member(s) of the Company may
nominate a person in whom the shares held by him/them shall vest in the event of his/ their
unfortunate death. Member(s) holding shares in physical form may file nomination in the
prescribed Form SH-13 with the Company’s RTA. In respect of shares held in
dematerialized form, the nomination form may be filed with the respective Depository
Participant.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address,
email address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates,
nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details,
bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held
by them in electronic form and to RTA in case the shares are held by them n physical form.

In case of jint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of
names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

Members desirous of seeking any information relating to the Annual Accounts of the
Company may write to the Company at 3C/1, Ecotech-1I, Udyog Vihar, Gautam Budh
Nagar, Greater Noida- 201306 (U.P.) for the attention of Chief Financial Officer, at least
seven days inadvance of the Meeting so that requisite information can be made available at
the Annual General Meeting.
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25, The Register of members and Share transfer books of the Company wil remain closed from
22nd September, 2020 to 28th September, 2020 (both days inclusive).

Place: New Delhi
Date:31.08.2020

For and on Behalf of
INDOSOLAR LIMITED

(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)
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Sa/-
(Hulas Rahul Gupta)
Managing Director
DIN: 00297722

Add: C - 12, Friends Colony
New Delhi 11006



THE EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No.-1

M/s. Arun K. Gupta & Associates, Chartered Accountants had resigned from the office of the
Statutory Auditors of the Company due to over-dues and disagreement over remuneration, vide
their letter dated 14t August, 2019.

In terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, if casual vacancy is a
result of resignation of an auditor, such appointment shall also be approved by the Company at
a general meeting convened within three months of the recommendation of the Board and such
Auditor shall hold the office till the conclusion of the next annual general meeting, however
Company couldn’t held members meeting within due time for said purpose due to reason stated
hereunder:

)  Production of the Company was stopped i October, 2018 and the Company has been
under Corporate insolvency process since 16t April, 2019. The office of the Board of
Directors stands dissolved.

i) Almost entire staff working with accounts, finance, secretarial and other departments left
thus Company wasn’t having enough manpower, funds & resources to hold general
meeting in prescribed time

In view of the above and in view of pending Compliance requirement w.r.t. Audit of financial
statement, the Resolution Professional on recommendation of the Committee of Creditors
appointed M/s A. K. G & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.002688N)
as Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of
M/s. Arun K. Gupta & Associates, Chartered Accountants. However, said appointment is
subject to approval/confirmation of the members.

The Company had also received the Consent-cum-Certificate from M/s A.K.G & Associates,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 002688N) confirming their eligibility under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for being appointed as Statutory Auditor of the
Company and their appointment, if approved/confirmed by the members, would be within the
Imits prescribed and according to the criteria’s provided under the Companies Act, 2013.

Accordingly, Ordinary Resolution & submitted to the members of the Company for the
consideration, ratification and approval of appointment of M/s A.K.G & Associates, Chartered

Accountants as auditor in casual vacancy.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Persons or their relatives, in any way, concerned or
interested in the said resolution.
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INDOSOLAR LIMITED
CIN: L18101DL2005PLC134879
Regd. Office: C-12, Friends Colony (East), New Delhi-110065
Tel.: 011-26841375, Email: cirp.indosolar@gmail.com, Website: www.indosolar.co.in

BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members,

The 14" Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year
ended 315t March, 2019 is hereby presented to the members of Company. The Company is undergoing
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 (Insolvency Code).Insolvency proceedings against the Company was initiated by the Lenders/Financial
Institutions in October, 2018 and the application for Insolvency Proceedings against the Company was
admitted by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), New Delhi bench vide its order dated 12t
April, 2019. Pursuant to the initiation of CIRP, vide aforesaid order, the adjudicating authority appointed Mr.
Gulshan Gaba, as Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) to carry the functions as mentioned under the Code
and later on Committee of Creditors (CoC) approved the appointment of Mr. Gulshan Gaba, the IRP as
Resolution Professional (RP). During the continuation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) the
powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended effective from the CIRP Commencement
date and such powers along with the management of affairs of the Company are vested with the Resolution
Professional, viz., Mr. Gulshan Gaba.

As per the provisions of Section 20 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC) 2016, the management and
operations of the Company are being managed by RP/IRP on a Going Concern Basis.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
315TMarch 2019 | 315"March 2018
Revenue From Operations (A) 1,322.36 31,412.37
Other Income (B) 290.49 431.15
Operating Expenditure (C) 3,788.30 33,551.24
Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation (D= A+B+C) (2,175.45) (1,707.72)
Finance Cost (E) 5,093.04 5,351.94
Depreciation And Amortization Expense (F) 2,413.69 2,810.58
Profit / ( Loss) Before Exceptional Items And Tax (G=D-E-F) (9,682.18) (9,870.24)
Exceptional Items [Profit/(Loss)] (H) (42,819.12) (6,410.96)
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (I=G-H) (52,501.30) (16,281.20)
Provision For Taxation (J) - 2.32
Profit/ (Loss) After Tax (K=1-J) (52,501.30) (16,283.52)

2. PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The revenue from operations for the year ended 315t March, 2019 stood at Rs.1,322.36 (Rs. In Lakhs) as
compared to Rs.31,412.37 (Rs. In Lakhs) for the previous year ending 315t March, 2018.
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The Loss before tax for the year ended 315t March, 2019 stood at Rs.52,501.30 (Rs. In Lakhs) as compared to
loss of Rs.16,281.20 (Rs. In Lakhs) for the year ending 315t March, 2018. The loss after tax stood at Rs.
52,501.30 (Rs. In Lakhs) for the year ending 315t March, 2019 as compared to loss of Rs.16,283.52 (Rs. In
Lakhs) for the previous year.

3. INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

As per the requirements of notification dated 16t February, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA), Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2018-19 have been prepared as per Ind
AS.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to any reserves due to heavy losses
incurred.

5. DIVIDEND

Due to non-availability of profit and ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), matter not
considered.

6. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company. The Company remained almost non-
operational during the period under review.

7. FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any fixed deposit within the meaning of Section
73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and no amount
of principal or interest is outstanding as on the balance sheet closure date.

8. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

As the Company is under CIRP, the powers of the Board of Directors continue to remain suspended. The
powers of board of directors are being exercised by the Resolution Professional (RP)/Interim Resolution
Professional (IRP) in accordance with Sections 17 and 23 of the Insolvency Code from the aforesaid date. Only
three (3) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the financial year 2018-19. Further details of
meetings of the Board please refer to the point no. 2 of the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of
this Report. As per section 173 of Companies Act, 2013 minimum No. of 4 meetings of Board of Director in a
calendar year couldn’t be held during the period under review due to resignation of three (3) Independent
Directors of the Company w.e.f. 26" November, 2018. However, the intervening gap between any two
consecutive Board Meetings did not exceed 120 days.

1.1 NUMBER OF MEETING OF COMMITTEE OF CREDITORS

Fifteen (15) Meeting of Committee of Creditors (CoC) were held during the period, provided as under:
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Number of CoC Meeting Date of CoC meeting
1st 15/05/2019
2nd 26/06/2019
3 02/08/2019
4th 12/09/2019
5th 01/10/2019
gth 17/10/2019
7t 23/10/2019
gth 08/11/2019
gth 22/11/2019
10th 02/12/2019
11t 13/12/2019
12th 02/01/2019
13th 09/01/2019
14th 14/02/2019
15t 06/03/2019

9. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
9.1 Change in the Board/KMPs-

The following Independent Directors submitted their resignation as per details given below:

Sr. Name of Independent directors Resignation submitted on
No.

1. Mr. Vidyut ManubhaiVora 26" November 2018
2. Ms. Vinati Dev 26t November 2018
3 Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari 26t November 2018

Consequently, the company has left with one director only.

9.2 Key Managerial Personnel

During the year, there was no change in Key Managerial Personnel except that Mr. Manish Gupta, Company
Secretary of the Company has resigned on 14t May, 2018. Pursuant to the provision of Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are Mr. Hulas Rahul Gupta,
Managing Director and Mr. Anand Kumar Agarwal, Chief Financial Officer.

9.3 Declarations of Independence

The Company is in CIRP and accordingly power of the board has been dispensed due to the appointment of
Mr. Gulshan Gaba, Resolution Professional pursuant to NCLT vide order dated 12th April, 2019. During the
year all three Independent Directors submitted their resignation. Therefore, no declaration received from each
independent director under section 149(7) of Companies Act 2013.

10. BOARD EVALUATION
As the Company is under CIRP, the powers of the Board of Directors continue to remain suspended and the
affairs of the Company is being managed by IRP/RP. Out of four (4) directors of the company, three (3)

independent directors have resigned w.e.f. 26" November 2018. Consequently, no meeting of the Directors
held during the Financial Year 2018-19 for such evaluation.
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11. REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has in place the policies that were duly approved by the Board on the recommendations of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee prior to commencement of CIR Process. During the year under
review, due to resignation of three (3) Independent Directors of the Company Nomination and Remuneration
Committee stands abandoned.

The policy for determining the remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel & other employees is
available on website of the Company i.e.
http://www.indosolar.co.in/images/pdf file/NOMINATION%20AND%20REMUNERATION%20POLICY.pd
f.

12. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of Annual Return in Form MGT -9 as required under Section (92) (3) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure -
| to this Report.

13. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH THE RELATED PARTIES
REFERRED TO IN SECTION 188(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

None of the transactions entered into by the company with related parties during the financial year 2018-19
falls under the scope of section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Information on transactions with related
parties pursuant to section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure I1in Form AOC-2 and the same forms part of this Report.

14. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the financial year 2018-19, the Company has not given loans, guarantees/surety or investment as
described under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

15. DETAIL OF SUBSIDARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

There is no subsidiary, joint venture or associate of the Company during the Financial Year 2018-19.

16. AUDIT COMMITTEE

Three (3) meetings of the Audit Committee of the board held during the year. For details of the meetings of the
Audit Committee, please refer to the point no. 3 of the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this
Report. Minimum required four meetings of Audit Committee couldn’t be held during the period under review
due to resignation of three (3) Independent Directors of the Company w.e.f. 26" November, 2018.

17. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Due to the continued losses incurred by the Company, the CSR provisions of Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable.

18. CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 315t March, 2019, there is no change in capital structure.
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19. PROMOTER/PROMOTER GROUP
The promoter and promoter group of the Company as on 31.03.2019 are as under:

Sr Promoter/Promoter Group
No.

1. Late Mr. Bhushan Kumar Gupta*

2. Mr. Hulas Rahul Gupta
(Director and shareholder)

3. Ms. Priya Desh Gupta

4. Ms. Abha Gupta

5. M/S Greenlite Lighting Corporation

*Mr. Bhushan Kumar Gupta, promoter of the Company, had demised prior to current financial year
however, his name is still appearing in the list of shareholders due to pending transmission of his shares.

20. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has put in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks associated
with the business. Risks are analysed and corrective actions were taken for managing/mitigating them. Major
risks identified and systematically discussed at the meeting of the CoC of the Company. In line with the
regulatory requirements, the Company has in place the Risk Management Policy to identify and assess the key
risk areas, monitor and report compliance and effectiveness of the policies and procedures.

The Risk Management Policy is available on the Company’s Website www.indosolar.co.in.

21. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company’s internal financial control systems are commensurate With the nature of its business and the size
and complexity of its operations. The compliance of checks and balances are ensured by the Management,
Internal Auditor and Statutory Auditors of the Company. The Board had earlier adopted policies and
procedures for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
Policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records and timely preparation of the reliable financial disclosures.

However, during the year under report, due to discontinuation of operations and unavailability of manpower
the Company could not maintain adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and the
same can’t be said to be operating effectively.

22. VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business activities and has put in place a vigil mechanism
for Directors, Employees and other person dealing with the Company for reporting illegal or unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s Code of Conduct. The mechanism provides
for adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors, employees or other persons who avail the
mechanism. In exceptional cases, Directors and employees have direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) is available on the Company's website www.indosolar.co.in.
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23. AUDITORS
STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Arun K. Gupta & Associates, Chartered Accountants had resigned from the office of the Statutory
Auditors of the Company due to over dues and disagreement over remuneration, vide their letter dated 14t
August, 2019.

In terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, if casual vacancy is a result of
resignation of an auditor, such appointment shall also be approved by the Company at a general meeting
convened within three months of the recommendation of the Board and such Auditor shall hold the office till
the conclusion of the next annual general meeting. However, the Company could not held members meeting
within due time for said purpose due to reason stated hereunder:

)] Production of the Company was stopped in October, 2018 and the Company has been under Corporate
insolvency process since 16t April, 2019. The office of the Board of Directors stands dissolved.

i)  Almost entire staff working with accounts, finance, secretarial and other departments left thus Company
wasn’t having enough manpower, funds & resources to hold general meeting in prescribed time

In view of the above and other pending Compliance requirements w.r.t. Audit of financial statement, the
Resolution Professional on recommendation of the Committee of Creditors (CoC) appointed M/s AK.G &
Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 002688N) as Statutory Auditors of the Company to
fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s. Arun K. Gupta & Associates, Chartered Accountants
to hold office till ensuing AGM. However, since for reasons stated above general meeting couldn’t be held for
confirmation of appointment, said appointment is subject to ratification and approval/confirmation of
members at this AGM.

Further, for regular appointment, in terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Statutory Auditors, if appointed by the shareholders at
Annual General Meeting, shall hold office till the conclusion of its 19t annual general meeting.

Accordingly, M/s AK.G & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 002688N) have been
proposed to be appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company by for a period of Five Financial Years i.e.
upto 2024 or as per tenure decided by the resolution applicant under the resolution plan to be approved by the
Adjudicating Authority, whichever is earlier at such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the
Resolution Professional/Board of Directors of the Company and the Statutory Auditors. A certificate
confirming that they are not ineligible for being appointed as the auditor of the Company under Section 141(3)
of the Companies Act, 2013 has been obtained from them.

Auditors Report

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have submitted Auditors’ Report, which have certain Qualifications on
the Financial Statements for the period ended on March 31, 2019

Managements’ Clarification/explanation on remarks in Independent Auditors’ Report

Production of the Company was stopped in October 2018 and most of the employees left the Company. The
company is undergoing CIR Process under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
(Code) in terms of Order dated 12" April, 2019 passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New
Delhi Bench (NCLT) and continue to be under CIRP vide subsequent orders of Hon’ble NCLT. Due to
unavailability of manpower, certain records couldn’t be compiled adequately, statutory compliances remained
pending and physical verification of certain assets and records couldn’t be done.
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The payment to the Financial Creditors (Including lenders) is incumbent upon the final outcome of the CIR
Process.

The observations and comments given by the Auditors in their report read together with notes on financial
statements are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

During the year under report, no fraud reported by the Auditors under second proviso to Section 143 (12) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed M/s SSPK & Co., a firm
of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the secretarial audit of the company for the Financial Year
2018-19 w.e.f. 30t January, 2020. The report of Secretarial Audit is annexed to this report as Annexure I1l.

The Secretarial Auditor’s Report contains some observations, which are self-explanatory and Managements’
Clarification/explanation on remarks in Secretarial Audit Report is as under-

Production of the Company was stopped in October 2018 and most of the employees left the Company. The
company is undergoing CIR Process under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
(Code) in terms of Order dated 12t April, 2019 passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New
Delhi Bench (NCLT) and continue to be under CIRP vide subsequent orders of Hon’ble NCLT. Due to
unavailability of manpower, certain records couldn’t be compiled adequately, statutory compliances remained
pending and physical verification of certain records couldn’t be done.

COST AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provision of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 10th August, 2018 has appointed M/s.
Kabra & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Reg No. 000075) as the cost Auditor of the Company for FY
2018-19, but the operations of the Company was closed in October and resumption of the same was not certain
thus, the said appointment does not resumed and their appointment for the financial year 2018-19 stands
cancelled.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 10th August, 2018 has appointed Mr. Lakhan Singh, General
Manager of Integrated Management System as Internal Auditor of the Company for FY 2018-19 but the
operations of the Company was closed in October and resumption of the same was not certain. Thus, the said
appointment does not resumed and his appointment for the financial year 2018-19 stands cancelled.

24. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO

Information relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
as required to be furnished under the provisions of section 134(3)(m)of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 given as Annexure 1V to this Report.
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25. ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS/COURTS/TRIBUNALSIMPACTING THE GOING
CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

Except for commencement of CIRP under the code, during the period no significant material orders were
passed by Regulators/Courts/Tribunals impacting the going concern status and company and its operations in
future.

26. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Management of the Company
confirmed that except as otherwise stated in this report and statutory audit report:

a. Followed in the preparation of the annual accounts, for the year ended 315t March, 2019, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if
any;

b. the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year ended 315t
March 2019;

c. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the Directors have Prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e. the Directors have laid down Internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f. the Directors have advised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

27. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES & DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF ACT
READ WITH RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 given as Annexure V forming integral
part of the Annual Report.

28. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONAND ANALYSIS REPORT
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, in terms of Regulation 34 of the

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 given as Annexure VI forming
integral part of the Annual Report.

29. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Your Company strives to ensure that best Corporate Governance Practices are identified, adopted and

consistently followed and adheres to the Corporate Governance requirements set out by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI). A separate report on Corporate Governance in terms of Regulation 34(3) of
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the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations”)
forms an integral part of this report and is set out as Annexure V11 to this Report.

The Certificate from the practicing Company Secretary M/s SSPK & Co., Company Secretaries, certifying
compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulation 15(2) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 is annexed with the Report on Corporate
Governance.

A Certificate of the Chairman cum Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company in terms
of the Listing Regulations, inter-alia, confirming correctness of the Financial Statements and Cash Flow
Statements, adequacy of internal control measures and reporting of matters to the Audit Committee/RP/IRP, is
annexed to the Report on Corporate Governance.

30. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

No material changes have occurred and commitments made, affecting the financial position of the Company
between the end of the financial year of the Company i.e. 315t March, 2019 and the date of this Reporti.e. 19th
February, 2020 except resignation of Mr. Ved Prakash Roy, Company Secretary w.e.f. 315t October, 2019.

Further, Mr. Anand Kumar Agarwal was re-appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the company w.e.f. 19t
August, 2019.

31. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company is committed to provide a protective environment at workplace for all its women employees. To
ensure that every woman employee is treated with dignity and respect and as mandate under “The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013” the Company has in
place a formal policy for prevention of sexual harassment of its women employees.

The Company has an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirement of “The Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013”.

32. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of Company
Secretaries of India except mentioned in the Secretarial Auditor Report and Statutory Auditor’s Report.

33. APPRECIATION

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation of the efforts and dedicated services of all the
employees, which have contributed by staying with the Company in the tough period.

34. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors places on record its appreciation for the support, assistance and co-operation received
from Government, Regulators and the bankers to the Company, i.e. Union Bank of India, Bank of Baroda,

Corporation Bank and Asset Reconstruction Company (India) Limited (ARCIL).The Board is thankful to the
shareholders for their support to the Company.
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The Board is also thankful to the employees of the Company for their co-operation and unstinted dedication to
duty leading to cordial industrial relations during the year under review.

For and on Behalf of

INDOSOLAR LIMITED
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Sd/-

(H. R. GUPTA)

Managing Director
DIN: 00297722

Place: New Delhi
Date: 31-08-2020
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Annexure |

FORMNO. MGT9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31st March, 2019
Pursuantto Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) ofthe Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

|. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 CIN L18101DL2005PLC134879

2 Registration Date 08-Apr-05

3 Name of the Company INDOSOLAR LIMITED

4 Category/Sub-category ofthe Company PUBLIC COMPANY
LIMITED BY SHARES

5 Address of the Registered ofice & contact details C-12, FRIENDS COLONY (EAST), NEWDELHI- 110065

6 Whether listed company YES

7 Name, Address & contact defails of the Registrar & Transfer | Link Inime India Private Limited

Agent if any. 44, Community Centre, 2nd Floor , Naraina Industrial Area,

Phase -1, Near PVR Naraina, New Delhi-110028.
Phone No.: 011-41410592

| Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(Allthe business actvies contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S. No. Name and Description of main products/services NIC Code | % to total turnover of the
ofthe company
Product/
service
1 Manufacturing of Solar Cells & Module 35105 100%
lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
SN Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applicable
Subsidiary/ | shares Section
Associate held

NI

L

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of tofal equity)
(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Categoryof No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held % Change
Shareholders [As on 31-March-2018] attheend ofthe | during the year
year
[As on 31-March-
2019]
Demat Physi Total % of Demat Phy Total % of
cal Total sica Total
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Shares Share
s
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 13,72,51,497 13,72,51,497 | 36.89% | 13,72,51,497 13,72,51,497 | 36.89 | 0.00%
%
b) Central Govt 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
c) State Govf(s) 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
d) Bodies Corp. 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
e) Banks/ Fl 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
f) Any other 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
Sub Total (A) (1) 13,72,51,497 13,72,51,497 | 36.89% | 13,72,51,497 13,72,51,497 | 36.89 | 0.00%
%
(2) Foreign
a) NRlIndividuals 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
b) Other Individuals 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
c) Bodies Corp. 7,44,46,551 7,44,46,551 | 20.01% | 7,44,46,551 7,44,46,551 | 20.01 | 0.00%
%
d) Any other 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
Sub Total (A) (2) 7,44,46,551 7,44,46,551 | 20.01% | 7,44,46,551 7,44,46,551 20.01 | 0.00
%
TOTAL (A) 21,16,98,048 21,16,98,048 | 56.90% | 21,16,98,048 21,16,98,048 | 56.90 | 0.00%
%
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
b) Banks/ Fl 1,57,13,342 1,57,13,342 | 4.22% | 1,56,18,906 1,56,18,906 | 4.20 | (0.02
% %)
c) Central Govt 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
d) State Govt(s) 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
e) Venture Capital 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
Funds
f) Insurance 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
Companies
g) Flls 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
h) Foreign Venture 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
Capital Funds
i) Others (specify) 0.00% 1,90,000 1,90.000 0.05% | 0.05%
Sub-total(B)(1):- 1,57,13,342 1,57,13,342 | 4.22% | 1,58,08,906 1,56,18,906 | 4.25% | (0.03
")
2. Non-nstitutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 1,99,54,111 1,99,54,111 5.36% 96,82,287 96,82,287 | 2.60% | (2.76)
%
i) Overseas 0.00% 0.00% | 0.00%
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b) Individuals
i) Individual 557,36,455 | 7,029 | 5,57,43,484 | 14,98% | 7,07,17,778 - 7,0717,778 | 19.01 | 4.02%
shareholders holding %
nominal share capital
upto Rs. 2 lakh
i) Individual 5,73,77,479 573,77,479 | 15.42% | 5,26,26,365 - 5,26,26,365 | 14.14 | (1.28)
shareholders holding % %
nominal share capital
in excess 0f Rs 2 lakh
c)NBFCs 0.00% 13,658 - 13,658 0.01% | 0.01%
registered
with RBI
Trust 0.00% 10,000 - 10,000 0.01% | 0.01%
employees
d) Others (specify)
Non ResidentIndians 26,36,795 26,36,795 0.71% 29,56,666 - 29,56,666 | 0.79% | 0.08%
HUF 52,47,069 52,47,069 1.41% 61,64,603 - 61,64,603 | 1.66% | 0.25%
Foreign Nationals 0.00% - 0.00% | 0.00%
Clearing Members 36,84,396 36,84,396 0.99% 23,66,413 - 23,66,413 | 0.64% | (0.35)
%
Trusts 9,644 9,644 0.01% 19,644 - 19,644 0.01% | 0.01%
Foreign Bodies-DR 0.00% - - 0.00% | 0.00%
Unclaimed Share 2,748 2,748 0.00% 2,748 - 2,748 0.00% [ 0.00%
Suspense Account
Sub-total (B)(2):- 14,46,48,697 | 7,029 | 14,46,55,726 | 38.88% | 14,45,60,162 - | 14,45,60,162 | 38.85 | 0.03%
%
Total Public (B) 16,03,62,039 | 7,029 | 16,03,69,068 | 43.10% | 16.03,69,068 - | 16.03,69,068 | 43.10 | 0.00%
%
C.Shares heldby 0.00% 0.00% | 0.00%
Custodianfor GDRs
& ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) | 37,20,60,087 | 7,029 | 37,20,67116 | 100% | 37,20,67116 37,20,67116 | 100% | 0.00%
(ii) Shareholding of Promoter/ Promoter Group
SN Shareholder’'sName Shareholding at the beginning of | Shareholding at % change in
the year theend of the shareholding
year during the year
No. of % of % of No. of % of % of
Shares total Shares Shares total Shares
Shares | Pledge Shares | Pledged
of the d/ of the /
compan | encumb compan | encumb
y ered to y ered to
total total
shares shares
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1| Bhushan Kumar Gupta* 56500001 | 15.19% | 100% | 56500001 | 15.19% | 100% | 000
2 | HulasRahul Gupta 80385494 | 2161% | 100% | 80385494 | 21.61% | 100% | 000
3 | PriyaDesh Gupta 355001 | 0.00% ; 355001 | 0.00% ; 0.00
4 | AbhaGupta 11,001 | 0.00% ; 11,001 | 0.00% ; 0.00

— . 74346551 0.00
1. Greenlite Lighting Corporation 74,446,551 | 20.01% i 20.01% i

*Mr. Bhushan Kumar Gupta, promoter of the Company, had demised prior to currentfinancial year. However, hisname is still appearing in
the list of shareholders due to pending ransmission of his shares.

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
S. No. | Particulars Date Rea | Shareholding atthe beginningof | Cumulative Shareholding during the
son the year year
No. of shares % oftotal No. of shares % oftotal
shares shares
1 BhushanKumar Gupta
At the beginning ofthe year | 01-Apr-18 15.19% 15.19%
5,65,00,001 5,65,00,001
Changes during the year 0.00% 15.19%
- 5,65,00,001
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 15.19% 15.19%
5,65,00,001 5,65,00,001
2 Hulas Rahul Gupta
At the beginning ofthe year | 01-Apr-18 21.61% 21.61%
8,03,85,494 8,03,85,494
Changes during the year 0.00% 21.61%
- 8,03,85,494
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 8,03,85,494 21.61% 8,03,85,494 21.61%
3 Priya Desh Gupta
At the beginning ofthe year | 01-Apr-18 3,55,001 0.10% 3,55,001 0.10%
Changes during the year - 0.00% 3,55,001 0.00%
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 3,55,001 0.09% 3,55,001 0.10%
4 Abha Gupta
At the beginning ofthe year | 01-Apr-18 11,001 0.00% 11,001 0.00%
Changes during the year - 0.00% 11,001 0.00%
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 11,001 0.00% 11,001 0.00%
5. Greenlite Lighting Corporation
At the beginning ofthe year | 01-Apr-18 7,44,46,551 20.01% 7,44,46,551 20.01%
Changes during the year 0.00% 7,44,46,551 20.01%
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 7,44,46,551 20.01% 7,44,46,551 20.01%
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
SN Foreach of theTop 10 Date Reason | Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding
shareholders beginning ofthe year during the year
No. of | % of total No.ofshares | % of total
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shares shares shares
IDBI Bank Limited
At the beginning ofthe year 01-Apr-18 1,07,21,005 2.88% 1,07,21,005 2.88%
Changes during the year 0.00% 1,07,21,005 2.88%
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 1,07,21,005 2.88% 1,07,21,005 2.88%
Thomas Varghese
At the beginning ofthe year 01-Apr-18 37,05,157 1.00% 37,05,157 1.00%
i v

Changes during the year 04 May-18 | oo (104648) (0.04)% 500500 .

T e | O 3567261 0.96%
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 35,67,261 0.96% 35,67,261 0.96%
Union Bank ofIndia
At the beginning ofthe year 01-Apr-18 29,65,000 0.80% 29,65,000 0.80%
Changes during the year 0.00% 29,65,000 0.80%
At the end of the year 31-Mar19 29,65,000 0.80% 29,65,000 0.80%
Bank of Baroda
At the beginning ofthe year 01-Apr-18 19,04,201 0.51% 19,04,201 0.51%
Changes during the year 0.00% 19,04,201 0.51%
At the end of the year 31-Mar19 19,04,201 0.51% 19,04,201 0.51%
MC Jain Info services Private Ltd
At the beginning ofthe year 01-Apr-18 18,47,570 0.50% 18,47,570 0.50%
Changes during the year 0.00% 18,47,570 0.50%
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 18,47,570 0.50% 18,47,570 0.50%
Brand Equity Treaties Limited
At the beginning ofthe year 01-Apr-18 14,00,000 0.38% 14,00,000 0.38%
Changes during the year (10,000) 0.01% 13,90,000 0.37%

29 Mar-19 Transfer
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 13,90,000 0.37% 13,90,000 0.37%
Vishanj Shamji Dedhia
At the beginning ofthe year 01-Apr-18 0.00% 0.00%
Changes during the year DiMay-1g | Acauire 7,00,000 0.19% 7,00,000 0.19%
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 7,00,000 0.19% 7,00,000 0.19%
Jainish Anil Kumar Lalcheta
At the beginning ofthe year 01-Apr-18 0.00% 0.00%
Changes during the year Acquire 6,92,262 0.19% 6,92,262 0.19%
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 6,92,262 0.19% 6,92,262 0.19%
Aditya Jain
At the beginning ofthe year 01-Apr-18 -
Changesduring the year 04-May 18 Acquire 6,51,241 0.18% 6,51,241 0.18%
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1,241 1,241
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 6,51, 0.19% 6,51, 0.18%
Deepa Singhal
10 —
At the beginning ofthe year 01-Apr-18
: - 6,08,724 6,08,724
Changes during the year 04-May 18 Acquire Mo, 0.16% e 0.16%
6,08,724 6,08,724
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 Y5, 0.16% o 0.16%

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN | Shareholdingof each Date Reason | Shareholdingat the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding
Directors andeachKey of the year during the year
Managerial Personnel No. of % of total No.ofshares | % oftotal

shares shares shares

1 Hulas Rahul Gupta
At the beginning ofthe 01-Apr-18 8,03,85,494 21.61% 8,03,85,494 21.61%
year
Changes during the year 0.00% 8,03,85,494 21.61%
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 8,03,85,494 21.61% 8,03,85,494 21.61%

2 | GautamSinghKuthari
At the beginning ofthe 01-Apr-18 1,00,000 0.03% 1,00,000 0.03%
year
Changes during the year Transfer (1,00,000) (0.03)% 0.00%
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 0.00% 0.00%
3 | Vidyut Manubhai Vora
At the beginning ofthe 01-Apr-18 41,911 0.01% 41,911 0.01%
year
Changes during the year Transfer (41,911) (0.01% 0.00%
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 0.00% 0.00%
4 | VinatiDev
At the beginning ofthe 01-Apr-18 0.00% 0.00%
year
Changes during the year 0.00% 0.00%
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 0.00% 0.00%
5 | Anand Kumar Agarwal
At the beginning ofthe 01-Apr-18 4,00,000 0.11% 4,00,000 0.11%
year
Changes during the year 0.00% 4,00,000 0.11%
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 4,00,000 0.11% 4,00,000 0.11%
6 | Manish Gupta*
At the beginning ofthe 01-Apr-18 0.00% 0.00%
year
Changes during the year 0.00% 0.00%
At the end of the year 31-Mar-19 0.00% 0.00%

*Mr.Manish Gupta Company secrefary of the Company has resigned w.e.f 14th May, 2018
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V.INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

(Amt.Rs./Lacs)

Particulars Secured Loansexcludingdeposits | UnsecuredLoans | Deposits Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 81,396.86 589.41 - 81,986.27
i) Interestdue but not paid 27,464.49 - 27,464.49
iii) Interestaccrued butnot due - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 1,08,861.35 589.41 - 109,450.76
Change in Indebtedness during thefinancial year
Addition 3,827.41 79.11 3,906.52
Reduction - - - -
Net Change 3,827.41 79.11 3,906.52
Indebtedness at theend of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 82,198.71 668.52 - 82,867.23
ii) Interest due but not paid 30,490.05 - 30,490.05
iii) Interestaccrued but notdue - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 1,12,688.76 668.52 - 113,357.28
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-ime Directors and/or Manager:

Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount

No. I "Name Hulas Rahul Gupta® (RslLac)

Designation Managing Director

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) ofthe Income-tax Act, 1961

1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act,

Income- tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)

Stock Option

3 SweatEquity

4 Commission

- as % ofprofit

- others, specify

5 Others, please specify
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Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

*The amount paid as per MCA order. (Please refer Note No. 34(b) of Notes to the financial statements)

B. Remuneration to other Directors

S.N.

Particulars of remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

(Rs/Lac)

IndependentDirectors

Gautam Singh Kuthari

Vidyut Manubhai Vora

Fee for attending board
commitee meetings

Vinati Dev

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

NIL:

Fee for attending board
committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Tol (2)

Towl (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C.Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

SN.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Key Managerial Personnel

Total Amount

Name

Anand Kumar Agarwal

Manish Gupta*

(Rs/Lac)

Designation

Gross salary

CEO

CFO

CS

(a) Salary as per provisions confained in
secton 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

29.70

1.07

30.77

(b) Value of perquisites ul/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

SweatEquity

Commission

- as % ofprofit

- others, specify
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5 Others, please specify - .

Total | : 29.70 1.07 30.77

* Mr. Manish Gupta Company secretary ofthe Company has resigned w.e.f. 14th May, 2018

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Sectionofthe | Brief Description | Details of Penalty / | Authority Appeal
CompaniesAct Punishment/ [RD/NCLT/ | made, if
Compounding fees COURT] any (give
imposed Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding NIL

B.DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C.OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

For and on Behalf of
INDOSOLAR LIMITED
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 31-08-2020 Sd/-

(H. R. GUPTA)

Managing Director
DIN: 00297722
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Annexure 11

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’
length transactions under fourth proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Indosolar Limited (‘the
Company’) has not entered into any contract/arrangement/transaction with its related parties, which are not
in ordinary course of business or at arm’s length during FY 2018-109.

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Not Applicable

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Not Applicable
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: Not Applicable

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: Not Applicable

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

(h) Date on which the resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188:
Not Applicable

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Not Applicable

(b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements / transactions: Not Applicable

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions: Not Applicable

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Not Applicable
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: Not Applicable

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: None

Details of related party transactions i.e. transactions of the company, with its promoters, the Directors or the
management, their relatives etc. are present under Note No. 34 Notes to the Financial Statements for the
financial year ended 315t March, 2019.

For and on Behalf of
INDOSOLAR LIMITED
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Sd/-
(H. R. GUPTA)
Managing Director
DIN: 00297722

Place: New Delhi
Date: 31-08-2020
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Annexure Il

Secretarial Audit Report
(For the financial year ended on March 31, 2019)
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Indosolar Limited

CIN: L24117RJ1979PLC002099

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Indosolar Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period ended on March 31, 2019,complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the period ended on March 31, 2019 according to the provisions of:

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder, as applicable;
1. The Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
I11. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA”) and the Rules made thereunder;
IV The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

V. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

VI. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company:-

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
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(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable
Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013;

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(I) The Depositories Act, 1996;

(J) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices
relating to Securities Market) Regulations, 2003;

We have relied on the representation obtained from the management of the Company and based on the
report received, there has been due compliance with the following laws applicable specifically to the
Company namely:

a. Environment Protection Act, 1986.

b. The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 read with Water (Prevention &
Control of Pollution) Rules, 1975

c. The Air (prevention & Control of Pollution), 1981 read with Air (Prevention & Control of

Pollution) Rules, 1982

Explosives Act, 1884

Manufacture Storage & Import of Hazardous and Chemicals Rules, 1989

Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991, as amended

Gas Cylinder Rules, 2004, 2016

The Hazardous wastes (Management, Handling & Trans boundary Movement) Rules, 2008

The Static and Mobile Pressure Vessels (Unfired) Rules 1981, 2016

—sae oo

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, Listing Regulation etc. mentioned above subject to observation
noted hereunder :

We further report that:

a)

The company has not complied with the minimum requirement of calling of meeting of Boards of
directors during a financial year as per provisions of Section 173(1) of the Act.

The notice of meeting of Board of directors is not in compliance with Secretarial Standards 1.
Compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by the Company has
not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to review by the Statutory Auditors
and other designated professionals.

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) initiated under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 ('the Code") and the outcome of the CIRP is subject to decision of APEX Court/ NCLT.

Application for CIRP filed on 23 October, 2018 and thereafter 3 independent directors namely Mr.
Vidyut Manubhai Vora, Ms. Vinati Dev and Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari has submitted their
resignation to company on 26t November 2018. However, such directors have not filed form DIR 11
with MCA and company have also not filed form DIR 12. Consequently, the company has left with
one director only and no board meeting have been called or held thereafter. Further financial
statements are approved and signed by only one director Mr. H.R. Gupta.

As informed by the management, neither written representations has been received from the directors
as on March 31,2019, and nor taken record by the board of directors regarding disqualification of
directors as on march 31,2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the
act. So we are unable to comment upon this.
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j)

k)

r)

t)

Statutory payments made to authorities (ESI and PF) during the year 2018-19 are inconsistent with
the salary amount booked for the year.

The Company has not appointed Qualified Company Secretary as the compliance officer as per
Regulation 6.

The company has not filed the following forms i.e., BEN-2, MSME -1, Active INC-22A and forms
for directors resignations.

The company has not complied with the provision of Appointment of internal auditor under
COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

The Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, Risk management Committee and Share Transfer Committee has been constituted but
deemed to be dissolved w.e.f. 26! November 2018 (Section 177 and 178 of the Companies Act,2013
and Regulation 19,20,21 and 40 of SEBI(LODR).

Application for CIRP filed on 23 October, 2018 and thereafter 3 independent directors namely Mr.
Vidyut Manubhai Vora, Ms. Vinati Dev and Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari has submitted their
resignation to company on 26" November 2018. However, such directors have not filed form DIR 11
with MCA and company have not filed form DIR 12. Consequently, the company has left with one
director only and no board meeting have been called or held thereafter. Further financial statements
are approved and signed by only one director Mr. H.R. Gupta.

Company has not submitted certificate as per provisions of Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (LODR), 2015
for the half year ended March 31, 2019 with the stock exchange.

Company has delayed in filing shareholding pattern for the quarter ended December 31, 2018 as per
the provisions of regulation 31 of SEBI (LODR), 2015.

Company has delayed in filing statement of investors’ complaints as per regulation 13 of SEBI
(LODR), 2015 for the quarter ended December 31, 2018.

Company has delayed in filing Financial Results for the third quarter ended December 2018 to the
stock exchange as per Regulation 30 of SEBI (LODR), 2015.

Company has not disclosed the shareholding of promoters to the stock exchange. (Regulation 28 of
SEBI (SAST) Regulation, 2011)

The company has not complied Section 148 of the companies act, 2013 for the Cost Audit and
appointment of Cost Auditor for the year 2018-19.

Company has not submitted financial results for the half year by way of a note, a statement of
assets and liabilities and statement of cash flows as at 30t September, 2018 and for the quarter
ended 315t December, 2018. (Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR), 2015).

In the matter of Company's claim for eligibility of capital subsidy under SIP scheme of Govt. of India.
The uncertainty exists with regard to its quantum and receipt of claim pending its appraisal by
Department of Electronics & Information Technology (DEIT). In the absence of the reasonable
assurance, the management has not recognized the claim.
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u) During the year 2017-18 the Company had received the approval of One Time Settlement (COTS)
Scheme from Union Bank of India (Bank) which was accounted for during FY 2017-18. During the
year 2018-19, OTS has been revoked vide letter having reference no. IFB:CR: IND:2018-19/2011
dated 12.12.2018. Consequently, Interest waived amounting to Rs. 17,389.48 lakhs up to 31.03.2017
is to be reversed and (i) interest for the interest free period i.e. April 2017 to March 2018 (amount not
ascertained) is become payable, (iii) The bank has also withdrawn other concessions i.e. lower rate of
interest charged on outstanding amount for the period from April 2018 onwards, consequential
interest need to be booked (amount not ascertained).

We further report that:

I rely on Statutory Auditor’s report in relation to the financial statements, qualifications and accuracy of
financial figures for sales, tax, GST, Related party transaction, etc. As disclosed under financial statement.

Except the qualification/observations mentioned above, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as
part of the minutes.

We further report that based on the information received and records maintained there are adequate
systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has not undertaken such events/actions such
as public, rights or preferential issue of shares, debentures or sweat equity; redemption or buy back of
securities; major decisions by members pursuant to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013; merger,
amalgamation or reconstruction; foreign technical collaboration or other events/actions that has major
bearing on the Company affairs in pursuance of above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards etc.

Place : Delhi For SSPK & Co.
Date : 04-03-2020 Company Secretaries
Sd/-
Sanjeev Pandey
Partner

Mem No.: 10272
COP No: 17237
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Annexure A to Secretarial Audit Report

To,

The Members,

Indosolar Limited,

CIN: L24117RJ1979PLC002099

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on testbasis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial record and Books of Accounts of
the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test
basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Delhi For SSPK & Co.
Date: 04-03-2020 Company Secretaries
Sd/-
Sanjeev Pandey
Partner

Mem No.: 10272
COP No: 17237
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ANNEXURE IV

INFORMATION RELATING TO ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO FORMING PART OF
DIRECTORS’ REPORT IN TERMS OF SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH Rule 8(3) THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

A CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

1. STEPS TAKEN FOR | N/A
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

2. CONSUMPTION OF UNITS OF | A. Electric Energy:
ENERGY 19.02(Pr. Year 200.73) lakhs units supplied by Power
Corporation.
0.00 (Pr. Year 11.00) lakhs units generated by DG
Sets.
B. Diesel:
0.00(Pr. Year3.21) lakhs liters for running DG Sets.

3. STEPS TAKEN BY COMPANY FOR | N/A
UTILIZING ALTERNATE ENERGY

4. THE CAPITAL INVESTMENT ON
ENERGY CONSERVATION | NIL
EQUIPMENTS

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to absorption Research and Development (R & D)

1. Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the | -
Company

. Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D -

2
3. Future plan of action -

4. Expenditure onR & D -
(a)Capital
(b)Recurring
(c)Total
(d)Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of
total turnover

Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation: NIL

1. Efforts, in brief, made towards technology | -
absorption, adaptation and innovation

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts, | -
e.g. product improvement, cost reduction,
product development, import substitution, etc.

3. In case of import of technology (imported
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during the last 5 years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year), following
information may be furnished:

(@) Technology imported
(b) ‘Year of import
(c) Has technology been fully absorbed

(d) If not absorbed, areas where this has not
taken place, reasons therefore and future plan of
action

ACTIVITIES RELATING TO EXPORTS,
INITIATIVES TAKEN TO  INCREASE
EXPORTS, DEVELOPMENT OF NEW EXPORT
MARKETS FOR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
AND EXPORT PLANS.

NIL

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

The total foreign exchange used and the total foreign exchange earned during the year as compared to the
previous financial year has been provided hereunder:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For Year 2018-19 For Year 2017-18
Foreign Exchange Earning# 1014.42 9,643.57
Foreign Exchange Outgo 5787.30 22,714.42

#Includes deemed exports to EOU/SEZ units amounting to 136.89 (previous year 9519.91)

For and on Behalf of
INDOSOLAR LIMITED

(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 31-08-2020
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Managing Director
DIN: 00297722




Annexure V

THE INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 ARE GIVEN BELOW:

a) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
company for the financial year 2018-19;

Name of Director Designation Ratio to Median Remuneration

Mr. Hulas Rahul Gupta | Managing Director 0

b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year 2018-19;

Name of Person Designation % Increase in
remuneration
Mr. Hulas Rahul Gupta Managing Director 0
Mr. Anand Kumar Agarwal Chief Financial Officer 0
Mr. Ved Prakash Roy Company Secretary 0

During the year, no remuneration (including sitting fees) were paid to the Independent Directors.
(c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2018-19: NIL
(d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 315t March 2019: 141
(e) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial remuneration:

There was no increase in the managerial remuneration and average increase in the remuneration other than
managerial personnel in 2018-19 was N/A

(f) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
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THE INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 READ WITH RULE 5(2) & 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 ARE GIVEN BELOW:

(a) Top 10 Employee in terms of remuneration (per annum) who were Employed throughout the
financial year:

S. | Name Designatig Remuneral Nature | Quali | Exper| Date | Age | Last % of | Name
No n tion of ficati | ience | of (Yea employ | Equit | of
(INR) employ| on Comm | rs) | ment y relati
ment enceme Before | capita| ve
nt joining | I'held| direct
of the ors
employ company mana
ment ger
1 |Mr.HR Managing 0 Full Bache| 33 [ 15-Jan- Phoenix | 21.61| -
Gupta Director Time | lors of 08 59 | Lamps %
Employ | busine limited
ee sS
admin
istrati
on
2 | Mr. Anand | Chief 29,70,000 | Full Bache| 43 01- 69 | Phoenix | 0.11%| -
Kumar Finance Time | lors of July-08 Lamps
Agarwal Officer Employ| comm limited
ee erce
3 | Dr. Dina Chief 16,14,900 | Full PhD 41 | 08-Dec-| 68 Semi | 0.00%
Nath Singh | Technical Time | Micro 08 Conducta
officer Employ| - r
ee electr Complex
onics Limited
4 | Mr. Vivek | Financial | 13,37,088 | Full CA, 25 14- 49 | Roulunds| 0.02%
Gupta Controller Time |ICW Nov-14 Braking -
Employ| A India Pvt
ee Ltd
5 | Mr. Dinesh | Chief 10,14,027 | Full Diplo 29 | 20-Dec-| 51 | Phoenix | 0.00%
B Shenoy | General Time | main 07 Lamps
Manager Employ | Comp limited -
(Purchase) ee uter
Scien
ce
6 | Mr, Prakash| General 7,75,534 | Full Bache| 37 01- 58 | Phoenix | 0.00%| -
Nautiyal Manager Time | lor of April- Lamps
(HR & Employ| Scien 08 limited
Admin) ee ce
7 | Mr. Nandan | General 6,48,080 | Full Maste| 24 01- 45| Osram | 0.00%| -
Singh Manager Time | rof Aug-14 India Pvt
Bhakuni (Productio Employ| Scien Ltd
n) ee ce
Mech
anical
8 | Mr. Christy | GM- 4,62,651 | Full AMIE| 35 18- 58 | Phoenix | 0.00%| -
John Utility Time | (Elect June-08 Lamps
Employ | ronics limited
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ee )
9 | Mr.Uma General 0 Full MBA 41 12- 59 | Phoenix | 0.00%| -
Shanker Manger Time |[in Aug-08 Lamps
Sharma (Finance) Employ| Finan limited
ee ce
10 | Ms. Roshini | Vice 0 Full Bache| 4 01- 27 None Nil [ Mr.H
Gupta President- Time | lor of April- R
Corporate Employ| Arts 14 Gupta
ee

(b) Employees who were in the receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs.1,02,00,000 or more per
annum, if Employed throughout the Financial Year:

None

(c) Employed for part of the financial year and was in receipt of remuneration not less than
Rs.8,50,000 per month:

None

(d) Employee who was in receipt of remuneration in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director
or whole time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent
children, not less than 2% of the equity shares of the Company: Nil

For and on Behalf of
INDOSOLAR LIMITED
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Sd/-
(H. R. GUPTA)
Managing Director

DIN: 00297722

Place: New Delhi
Date: 31-08-2020
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Annexure VI

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Due to extremely adverse market conditions, Company was consistently running into losses and
Company had shut down its production facilities w.e.f. 15th May, 2018. Consequently, Company
remained nearly non-operational during the period under review.

Insolvency proceedings against the Company has begun by the Lenders/Financial Institutions in
October, 2018. The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), New Delhi bench vide its
order dated 12th April, 2019 admitted application for Insolvency against the Company. Pursuant to the
order, the power of the Board of Directors stands suspended as per IBC code and such powers are
exercisable by Mr. Gulshan Gaba, who was appointed as Interim Resolution Professional(IRP) and
later continued as Resolution Professional(RP) by the Committee of Creditors (COC).

This report is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Management consists of the
Board of Directors of the Company and senior executives who works under the guidance of the Board.
The Management is required to inter-alia discuss, analyse and provide commentary on financial
performance, operational performance, systems and controls, compliance with laws and regulations,
and actions it has planned or has taken to address any challenges the company is facing. Management
also discusses the risks and concerns and future outlook by outlining future goals and approaches to
new projects.

There were four Directors on the Board of the Company. Post initiation of corporate insolvency
proceeding by the Lenders/Financial Institutions, All the three Independent Directors i.e. Mr. Gautam
Singh Kuthari, Mr. Vidyut Manubhai Vora and Ms. Vinati Dev have resigned from the Board of
Directors of Company on 26t November 2018. Further, the Board was suspended on commencement
of CIRP 16t April, 2019 on admission of Insolvency Proceeding by Hon’ble NCLT. Further, almost
all senior executives left the Company during the period under review.

Due to above, reasons Management Discussion and Analysis Report could not be presented.
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Annexure VII

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT AS ON 315TMARCH, 2019

The Company is undergoing CIRP under the provisions of the Code, in terms of order dated
12th April, 2019 passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench, New
Delhi (“NCLT”) (“Admission Order”) Mr. Gulshan Gaba (IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-
001/1P-P00548/2017-18/10978) had been appointed as an interim resolution professional under
the provisions of Code vide the Admission Order. As per Section 17 of the Code, the powers of
the Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended and the same have been vested with Mr.
Gulshan Gaba as the interim resolution professional. Subsequently, the committee of creditors of
the Corporate Debtor, which was formed pursuant to the provisions of the Code, appointed Mr.
Gulshan Gaba as resolution professional in terms of the provisions of the Code. Subsequently,
the NCLT, vide its Order dated 27th November, 2018 (“Consolidation Order”), ordered the
consolidation of the CIRP of Indosolar Limited (“Corporate Debtor”), and appointed Mr.
Gulshan Gaba as the resolution professional of the Corporate Debtor (hereinafter referred to as
the “Erstwhile Resolution Professional’). After the Consolidation Order, the first meeting of the
consolidated committee of creditors of the Corporate Debtors (“CoC”) was held on
16t September, 2019. In the voting conducted during and pursuant to the said meeting, the CoC
voted, with the requisite majority required under the Code, for the appointment of Mr. Gulshan
Gaba as the resolution professional of Indosolar Limited (“Corporate Debtor”), (‘“Resolution
Professional”). Accordingly, the NCLT vide its order dated 27th November, 2018 (published on
18" April, 2019) approved the appointment of the Erstwhile Resolution Professional of Mr.
Gulshan Gaba as the resolution professional of the Corporate Debtors (“Resolution
Professional”) for the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor. A copy of the Order of Appointment was
made available on 16t April, 2019 when the same was uploaded on the website of the NCLT.
Pursuant to the publication of the Order of Appointment on 16t April, 2019, and in accordance
with the provisions of the Code, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stand
suspended and the same have been vested with and are being exercised by the Resolution
Professional.

The Directors present the Indosolar Limited’s (“Company”).

Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 315t March, 2019

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Philosophy of Indosolar Limited rests on the pillars of integrity,

accountability, equity, transparency and environmental responsibility that confirms full with

laws, regulations and guidelines. The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance is to

achieve business excellence and maximize stakeholders’ value through ethical business conduct.

Company’s philosophy also includes building partnership with all stakeholders. The Company

defines its stakeholders as its Investors, Employees, Customers, Suppliers, Lenders, Assoc iates

and the Society at large. The Company continues its commitment to high standards of corporate

governance practices.

The Management of your Company commit themselves to:

(a) Maintain the highest standards of transparency and professionalism in all aspects of decision
and transactions;

(b) Ensure timely dissemination of all price sensitive information and other matters of interest to
our stakeholders;
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(A)

(B)

(©)

(c) Ensure that the Board exercises its fiduciary responsibilities towards all stakeholders;
(d) Comply with the rules and regulations applicable to the Company;

(e) Protect interest of all stakeholders; and

(f) Regular communication with members.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In terms of the provisions of Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013, every company shall hold
a minimum number of four meetings of its Board of Directors every year in such a manner that
not more than one hundred and twenty days shall intervene between two consecutive meetings
of the Board.

The Lenders/Financial Institutions initiated insolvency proceedings against the Company in
October, 2018. The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), New Delhi bench vide
its order dated 12t April, 2019 admitted application for Insolvency against the Company.
Pursuant to the order, the power of the Board of Directors stands suspended as per IBC code,
2016 and such powers are exercisable by Mr. Gulshan Gaba, who was appointed as Interim
Resolution Professional(IRP) and later continued as Resolution Professional(RP) by the
Committee of Creditors(COC). Thus, no meetings of the Board of Directors were held after
November 3, 2018.

The Board of Directors along with its Committees provide leadership and vision to the
management and supervise the functioning of the Company. The composition of the Board is
governed by the Listing Regulations executed with the Stock Exchanges, the Companies Act
and the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company.

Composition of Board

The Company has one executive director, which is also Managing Director and Promoter as on
315t March, 2019. The other three Directors namely Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari, Mr. Vidyut
Manubhai Vora and Ms. Vinati Dev who were independent directors of the Company out of the
four directors had resigned on 26t November, 2018 and no e-forms were filed to Registrar after
their resignation. Therefore, their names are still appearing on MCA portal. All the executive
directors are liable to retire by rotation.

Non-Executive Directors’ Compensation

The non-executive directors did not have any material pecuniary relationship or transaction with
the Company during the financial year ended 31t March 2019. No stock options were granted to
non-executive independent directors during the year under review.

Board Meetings and Last Annual General Meeting and Attendance of Board Meeting
During the financial year 2018-19, three meetings of the Board of Directors were held on 25t
May 2018, 10t Aug 2018 and 3@ November 2018.

The Thirteenth Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company was held on 28t September,
2018.
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Meetings and Attendance

Details regarding attendance of each Director at Board Meetings, Last Annual General Meeting
(AGM) and Number of Directorship and Committees positions held by them as on 31st March,
2019 are given below:

Name and DIN Attendance at No. of Directorships and Committee
Designation of Meetings heldduring | Chairmanships/ Membership held in
Directors 2018-2019 Companies
Board 13"Annual | Total No. | Audit | Stakeholders Chairmansh
Meetings | General of and committee ipin
Meeting directorsh | Relati committees
(outof 3) | heldon ip onship
28.09.2018 | including | Com
the mittee
company
as on 31
March,
2019
Mr. Hulas Rahul 3 Yes 1 1 1 Nil
Gupta,
Managing
Director-
Promoter
Mr. Gautam 3 Yes 1 2 2 2
Singh Kuthari#
Non-executive
Independent
Director
Mr. Vidyut 3 No 0 2 1 Nil
Manu bhai
Vora#
Non-executive
Independent
Director
Ms. Vinati Dev# 3 No 1 1 1 Nil
Non-executive
Independent
Director

#ceased to be Directors of the Company from 26" November, 2018 and no e-forms were filed to
Registrar after their resignation. Therefore, their names are still appearing on MCA portal.

Notes:

¢ While considering the total number of directorships, directorships in private companies, foreign
companies and section 25 (of Companies Act 1956)/ Sec 8 (of Companies Act 2013) companies
have been excluded.
e For the purpose of reckoning the limit of the Committees on which a director can serve, the
Chairmanship/ Membership of the Audit Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship
Committee of all listed and/or Unlisted Public Limited Companies only have been considered as
prescribed under regulation 26(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2015.
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e As per terms of Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2015, it is hereby disclosed that there is no inter-se relationship amongst the
directors.

Pursuant to amended SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
information of Directorship at other listed companies(as available at MCA website as on date of the

report) in respect of the Directors of the Company is given below:-

Sr. Name of Directors Name of Listed Company Category

[1\|.0' Mr. Hulas Rahul Gupta, Nl Nl
2. Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari* Nil Nil
3. Mr. Vidyut ManubhaiVora* Nil Nil
4. Ms. Vinati Dev* Nil Nil

*Mr.Gautam Singh Kuthari, Mr. Vidyut Manubhai Vora and Ms. Vinati Dev, Independent Directors
of the Company have resigned from the Company on 26" November, 2018.

(D) Independent Director

The terms and conditions of the appointment of Independent directors are disclosed on the website of
the Company at http://www.indosolar.co.in/index.php/investor-relations. The details of such
familiarization programs for Independent Directors of the Company is placed on the Company’s
website and can be accessed at http://www.indosolar.co.in/index.php/investor -relations.

The details of the Equity Shares held by the Non-executive directors as on 31st March, 2019:

S. Name of the Directors No. of Shares held
No

1. Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari* 0

2. Mr.Vidyut Manubhai Vora* 0

3 Ms. Vinati Dev* 0

*Mr.Gautam Singh Kuthari, Mr. Vidyut Manubhai Vora and Ms. Vinati Dev, Independent Directors
of the Company have resigned from the Company on 26t November, 2018.

Composition, Meetings and Attendance of Independent Director’s Meeting
During the Financial year march 31, 2019, the Independent Director’s meeting was held on 25t May,
2018. The attendance of the members are mentioned below-

Name of the Member Category Chairman/ No. of meetings
Member attended

Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari Independent Chairman 1

Mr. Vidyut Manubhai Vora Independent Member 1

Ms. Vinati Dev Independent Member 1

All the Independent Directors i.e. Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari, Mr. Vidyut Manubhai Vora and Ms.
Vinati Dev has resigned from the Company on 26! November, 2018 and no e-forms were filed to
Registrar after their resignation. Therefore, their names are still appearing on MCA portal.
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(E) Code of Conduct
The Company has prescribed a Code of Conduct for its directors and senior management. The Code
of Conduct of the Company has been posted on the website of the Company www.indosolar.co.in.
The directors and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code during the
year ended 315tMarch 2019. The declaration from the Managing Director stating that as of 31stMarch
2019, all the board members and the senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with
the Code of Conduct of the Company has been included in this report.

Familiarization programmes
The Company provides an orientation and business overview to all its new directors and provides

documents, reports and briefing material to the directors to familiarise them with the Company’s
procedures and practices, which assists them in discharging their duties and responsibilities. They are
also familiarized with their role, rights and responsibilities from time to time. The Directors of the
Company are also informed of the important developments in the Company. The detail of the
familiarization programme for independent directors is placed on the Company’s website and can be
accessedathttp://www.indosolar.co.in/images/pdf _file/FAMILIARIZATION%20PROGRAMME. pdf

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Act, the Listing Regulations, and the
Secretarial Standards issued by the ICSI, the Company’s Independent Directors meet at least once in
a year without the presence of non-independent directors or members of the Management Personnel.
Since the Company continue to be under CIR Process and the powers of the Board are vested and are
being exercised by IRP/RP, no meeting of Independent directors was held during the Financial Year
2018-109.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

(A)Terms of Reference

In terms of Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014, the constitution, role and the manner of conducting Audit Committee shall be as under:

1. Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2. Recommending to the Board of Directors, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the
replacement or removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees;

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors;

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board
of Directors for approval, with particular reference to:

a) Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in
the Board of Directors' report in terms of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

¢) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
f) Disclosure of any related party transactions;

g) Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the
board for approval,

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/applications of funds raised through an
issue (public issue, right issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer documents/prospectus/notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights
issue and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of
the internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting
structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the board,;
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16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same is existing;

19. Approval of the appointment of CFO (i.e. the whole time finance director or any other person
heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications,

experience & background, etc. of the candidate;

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit

Committee.

(B) The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;
2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by audit committee),

submitted by management;

3. Management letters/ letters of internal control weaknesses issued by statutory auditors;

e

Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be

subject to review by the audit committee;
6. Statement of deviation;

a. Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

b. Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/ prospectus/ notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

(D) Composition, Meetings and Attendance

During the Financial year march 31, 2019, the audit Committee met 3 times on 25t May, 2018, 10t
august, 2018 and 3@ November, 2018 and necessary quorum was present at all meetings. The
attendance of the members is mentioned below-

Name of the Member Category Chairman/ No. of meetings
Member attended

Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari* Independent Chairman 3

Mr. Vidyut Manubhai Vora* Independent Member 3

Ms. Vinati Dev* Independent Member 3

*Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari, Mr. Vidyut Manubhai Vora and Mr. Vinati Dev has resigned from the
Board of Directors of the Company w.e.f. 26! November, 2018.
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All 3 Independent Directors of the Company namely Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari, Mr. Vidyut
Manubhai Vora and Ms. Vinati Dev, resigned from the Company on 26" November, 2018. Hence,
Audit Committee stands dissolved w.e.f. 27t November, 2018.

As per the provisions of the Code and provisions of Regulation 15 (2A) and (2B) of the SEBI
(LODR) as amended from time to time, the provisions specified in regulation related to Audit
Committee, shall not be applicable during the corporate insolvency resolution process and the roles
and responsibilities of the board of directors and the committees, specified in the respective
regulations, shall be fulfilled by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional of the
Company.

4. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITIEE (EARLIER INVESTORS’
GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE)

In accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013and Regulation 20 of the Listing
Regulations. a Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is to be constituted in order to consider and
resolve the grievances of the equity shareholders of the Company. The said Committee approves the
transfer/transmission of shares as and when required from time to time.

(A) Composition, Meetings and Attendance

During the Financial year march 31, 2019, the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee met 3 times on
25t May, 2018, 10t August, 2018 and 3" November, 2018 and necessary quorum was present at all
meetings. The composition and attendance of the members is mentioned below-

Name of the Member Category Chairman/ Member | No. of meetings
attended

Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari* Independent Chairman 3

Mr. Vidyut Manubhai Vora* Independent Member 3

Mr. Hulas Rahul Gupta* Executive Member 3

*Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari, Mr. Vidyut Manubhai Vora and Mr. Vinati Dev have resigned
from the Board of Directors of the Company w.e.f. 26t November, 2018.

All 3 Independent Directors of the Company namely Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari, Mr. Vidyut
Manubhai Vora and Ms. Vinati Dev, resigned from the Company on 26! November, 2018. Hence,
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee stands dissolved w.e.f. 27" November, 2018.

As per the provisions of Code and provisions of Regulation 15 (2A) and (2B) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time, the provisions specified in Regulations 20
(Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee), shall not be applicable during the insolvency resolution
process. Nonetheless, the Company is furnishing the requisite details pertaining to Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee in terms of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR).

(B) Name and address of Compliance Officer:
Mr. Anand Kumar Agarwal
Compliance Officer
Indosolar Limited
3C/1, Ecotech-I1, Udyog Vihar
Greater Noida-201306, Uttar Pradesh
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Tel. No.: +91-11 26841375; E-mail: cirp.indosolar@gmail.com

(C) Shareholders grievances/complaints received and resolved during the year

1 Number of Shareholders complaints received during the year Nil

2 Number of Complaints not resolved to the satisfaction of Nil
shareholders

3 Number of Complaints pending at the end of the year Nil

(D) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA)

Link Intime India Private Limited

44, Community Centre, 2" Floor,

Naraina Industrial Area, Phase-I,

Near PVR Naraina, New Delhi-110028

Phone No.- 011-41410592-94, Fax No.- 011-41410591
E Mail- delhi@linkintime.co.in, Website- linkintime.co.in

5. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (EARLIER REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE)

In pursuance to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 19 of the Listing
Regulations, which comprises of three Non-Executive Directors with two Independent Directors
forming majority.

As per the provisions of Code and provisions of Regulation 15 (2A) and (2B) of the SEBI (LODR),
as amended from time to time, the provisions specified in Regulations 17, 18, 19, 20 and 21, shall
not be applicable during the corporate insolvency resolution process. The provisions as specified in
the said regulations of the SEBI (LODR) shall not be applicable during the corporate insolvency
resolution process period and the roles and responsibilities of the board of directors and the
committees, specified in the respective regulations, shall be fulfilled by the interim resolution
professional or resolution professional.

(A) Terms of Reference
The terms of reference includes the following:

* Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of the director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to
the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

» Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the
board of directors.

+ Devising the policy on diversity of the board of directors.
+ ldentifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in

senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the board
of directors their appointment and removal.
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» Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of independent director on the basis
of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.

» Fixing & Reviewing the remuneration of the Chief Executives and other senior officers of
the Company;

+ Recommending the remuneration including the perquisite package of key management
personnel;

» Determining the remuneration policy of the Company;
« Recommending to the Board retirement benefits;
» Reviewing the performance of employees and their compensation; and

» Attending to any other responsibility as may be entrusted by the Board.

(B) Composition, Meetings and Attendance

During the Financial year march 31, 2019, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 1 time
on 25t May, 2018 and necessary quorum was present at the meeting. The attendance of the members
is noted below-

Name of the Member Category Chairman/ No. of meetings
Member attended

Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari* Independent Chairman 1

Mr. Vidyut Manubhai Vora* Independent Member 1

Ms. Vinati Dev* Independent Member 1

*Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari, Mr. Vidyut Manubhai Vora and Mr. Vinati Dev have resigned from the
Board of Directors of the Company w.e.f. 26" November, 2018.

All 3 Independent Directors of the Company namely Mr.Gautam Singh Kuthari, Mr. Vidyut
Manubhai Vora and Ms. Vinati Dev, resigned from the Company on 26! November, 2018. Hence,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee stands dissolved w.e.f. 27t November, 2018.

© Remuneration Policy and Remuneration to Directors
(a) Executive Directors:
Details of remuneration paid/ payable to the directors for the year under review are given below:

Salary & Perks Commission Total
Name of Director (in Rs lacs.) (in Rs. Lacs) (inRs. Lacs)
Mr. Hulas Rahul Gupta 0 0 0

(b) Non-Executive Directors:

Details of remuneration paid/ payable to the directors for the year under review are given below:
[S.No. |  Name of the non-executive | Sitting fees (Rs.) | Shareholding in
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director the company
1. Shri. Gautam Singh Kuthari* 0 0
2. Shri Vidyut Manubhai Vora* 0 0
3 Smt. Vinati Dev* 0 0

*Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari, Mr. Vidyut Manubhai Vora and Ms. Vinati Dev have resigned from the
Company on 26" November, 2018 and no e-forms were filed to Registrar after their resignation.
Therefore, their names are still appearing on MCA portal.

6. SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE

(A) Terms of Reference:
The terms of reference includes the following:

() To approve the request for transfer, transmission, etc. of shares;
(i) To approve the dematerialization and re-materialization of shares;
(iif) To consider and approve, split, consolidation and issuance of duplicate shares; and
(iv) To review from time to time overall working of the secretarial department of the company
relating to the shares of the company and functioning of the share transfer agent and other
related matters.
(B) Composition, Meetings and Attendance
During the Financial year march 31, 2019, the Share Transfer Committee met 2 times on 12t" July,

2018 and 18t July, 2018 and necessary quorum was present at the meetings. The attendance of the
members is noted below-

Name of the Member Category Chairman/ Member No. of meetings
attended

Mr.  Gautam  Singh Independent Chairman 2

Kuthari*

Mr. Hulas Rahul Gupta Executive Member 2

*Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari has resigned from the Board of Directors of the Company w.e.f. 26t
November, 2018.

All 3 Independent Directors of the Company namely Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari, Mr. Vidyut
Manubhai Vora and Ms. Vinati Dev, resigned from the Company on 26t November, 2018. Hence,
Share Transfer Committee stands dissolved w.e.f. 27t November, 2018.
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7.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

7.1 Annual General Meeting

The details of the Annual General Meetings (AGM) held during last three years and Special
Resolutions passed therein are noted below:

Whether any special
Financial Year [Venue Day, date and time resolution Passed
Mithas Motel & Resort, 92/16,
2015-2016 G.T. Karnalroad, Alipur, Friday, 30th September 2016
(11th) Delhi-110036 at 09:00 AM No
Mithas Motel & Resort, 92/16,
2016-2017 G.T. Karnalroad, Alipur, Friday, 28th September 2017
(12th) Delhi-110036 at 09:00 AM No
2017-2018 Royal Arches Farmhouse, Palla
(13th) BakhtawarputRoad, Alipur, Friday, 28th September 2018
Delhi-110036 at 09:00 AM Yes

7.2 Extra Ordinary General Meeting
During the year, the Company has not conducted any Extra Ordinary General Meeting.

7.3 Postal Ballot and e-voting

During the year under report, no resolution was passed through Postal Ballot. None of the business
proposed to be transacted at the ensuing Annual General Meeting require passing of resolution
through Postal Ballot.

8.

1.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Results: The Company’s quarterly/half yearly and yearly financial results were published in,
Financial Express (English Edition) and Jansatta (Hindi Edition) and also displayed on the
Company’s website i.e http:/indosolar.co.in/index.php/ investor-relations. The Company also
issues news releases on significant corporate decisions/ activities and posts them on the website
of the Company.

. Website: The Company’s website (www. indosolar.co.in) contains a separate dedicated section

“Investors” where investors’ information is available. The Company’s Annual Report is also
available in a user friendly and downloadable form thereat.

. Annual Report: The Annual Report containing inter-alia Audited Financial Statements,

Consolidated Financial Statements, Report to the Shareholders, Auditors’ Report and other
important information, is circulated to members and others entitled thereto. The Management
Discussion and Analysis Report (MDAR) forms part of this Annual Report and is displayed on
the Company’s website (www.indosolar.co.in).

NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS): NEAPS is a web-based application
designed by NSE for Corporates. All periodical compliance filings like financial results,
shareholding pattern, corporate governance report, media releases, among others are filed
electronically on NEAPS.
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5. BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the ‘Listing Centre’): BSE’s Listing Centre
is a web-based application designed for Corporates. All periodical compliance filings like
financial results, shareholding pattern, corporate governance report, media releases, among
others are also filed electronically on the Listing Centre.

6. SCORES (SEBI Complaints Redressal System)

SEBI commenced processing of investor complaints in a centralized web based complaints
redressal system i.e. SCORES. The Company supported SCORES by using it as a platform for
communication between SEBI and the Company.

Corporate Filing and Dissemination System (Corp-filing) & NEAPS (NSE Electronic
Application Processing System)All disclosures and communications to BSE Limited (BSE) and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) are filed electronically through Corp-filing and
NEAPS respectively. The disclosures are also mailed to the exclusive e-mail 1Ds of these Stock
Exchanges.

Exclusive e-mail 1D for investors

Pursuant to SEBI Circular, the Company has created an e-mail ID exclusively for redressal of
investors grievances. The investors may post their grievances to the specific to the specific e-
mail 1D i.e. cirp.indosolar@gmail.com.

Details of Unclaimed Shares in terms of Regulation 34 and Schedule V of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

In terms of Regulation 34 and Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has opened a separate demat suspense account
named as “INDOSOLAR LIMITED UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT” and credited the
shares of the Company which are remaining unclaimed by the shareholders allotted pursuant to

the Initial Public Offering (IPO).

The details of such unclaimed shares as on 315t March 2019 are set out below:

Particulars

No. Of
Cases

No. of Shares of
Rs. 10 each

Aggregate number of shareholders and outstanding shares in the
suspense account lying on 1st April 2018

Number of shareholders who approached to the Company /registrar for
transfer of shares from suspense account upto 31st March 2019
Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from
suspense account upto 31st March 2019

Aggregate number of shareholders and outstanding shares in the
suspense account lying at the end of the year, i.e. as on 31st March
2019

01

01

2748

2748

The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful
owner of such shares claims the shares.

The shareholders who have not so far received their shares allotted to them in the IPO are requested to
contact by writing to the Company and / or the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company along
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with necessary documents.

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

(&) Annual

Day and date

Time
Venue

(b) Financial Calendar for 2019-20 (tentative schedule)

General Meeting : 14th Annual General Meeting

11:30 AM

Monday, 28" September, 2020

ThroughVideo Conferencing

Financial year
Annual Results for financial year ended 315

March

2020 (audited)

Board meetings for approval of quarterly

results

1st quarter ended on 30th June 2019
2nd quarter ended on 30th September 2019

3 qua

(c) Book Closure date

(d) Dividend Payment date

rter ended on 30th September 2019

Listing on Stock Exchanges
The equity shares of the Company are listed and traded on the following stock exchanges in India:

April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020

22nd September to 28t September 2020 (both days
inclusive)
Not applicable

Sr. | Name & Address of Stock Exchange Stock/Scrip Code
No.
1. National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) INDOSOLAR
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai-
400050
2. | BSE Limited (BSE) Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Dalal 533257
Street, Mumbai — 400 001
ISIN:INE8B66K01015
CIN: L18101DL2005PLC134879

The Annual Custody Fees of BSE & NSE and the Annual Custodian Fees of NSDL & CDSL for
the FY 2018-19 has not paid due to Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process of the Company

vide Hon’ble NCLT order dated 12t April, 2019.
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Market Price Data
(i) The Market Price data and volume of the Company’s (APIL) shares traded in BSE Ltd. and BSE

Sensex during the Financial Year 2018-19 were as follows:

Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) SENSEX
Apr-18 8.37 7.01 35160.4
May-18 7.35 5.11 35322.38
Jun-18 6.2 4.38 35423.48
Jul-18 5.35 3.91 37606.58
Aug-18 7.19 4.6 38645.07
Sep-18 5 3.64 36227.14
Oct-18 3.8 2.42 34442.05
Nov-18 2.8 1.61 36194.30
Dec-18 2.57 1.66 36068.33
Jan-19 2.46 1.96 36256.69
Feb-19 2.19 1.75 35867.44
Mar-19 2.89 1.9 38672.91
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(i) The Market Price data and volume of the Company’s (APIL) shares traded in National Stock

Exchange and Nifty index during the Financial Year 2018-19 were as follows:-

Month High Low NIFTY OPEN CLOSE TRADED
(Rs.) (Rs.)

Apr-18 7.804762 7.404762 10472.93 7.628571 7.569048 144791
May-18 6.472727 6.159001 10664.448 6.345455 6.263636 264859.3
Jun-18 5.430052 5.085714 10751.461 5.33333 5.254762 205866.7
Jul-18 4.890900 4577273 11022.413 4.765900 4.709001 246136.5
Aug-18 5.607143 5.42381 11519.808 5.52381 5.5 189965.2
Sep-18 5.475397 5.167989 11265.275 5.367989 5.283889 182548.8
Oct-18 3.095238 2.907143 10325.971 3.03809%5 2.961905 412269.4
Nov-18 2444762 2.362857 10639.022 2.411906 2.3880%5 510372.5
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Dec-18 2.229738 2.153143 10767.533 2.195595 2.184405 284769.9
Jan-19 2.13913 2.01087 10805.479 2.084783 2.071739 129335.1
Feb-19 2.096957 1.993043 10826.161 2.061739 2.043587 112451.8
Mar-19 2.54984 2.441739 11363.332 2.508513 2.491768 173319.4
INDOSOLAR Share Price on NSE
E-3 1 2O
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i 2000
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—— High (Rs,] —8—Low (Rs,) MIFTY
(f)  Market capitalization:
Market capitalization NSE BSE

As on 31st March 2019 (Rs.)

762,737,587.8

770,178,930.12

h) Registrar and share transfer agents
Link Intime India Private Limited,
44, Community Centre, 2nd Floor,
Naraina Industrial Area, Phase-I,

Near PVR Naraina, New Delhi-110028,

Phone No.-011-41410592-94, Fax No.-011-41410591,
E. Mail: delhi@linkintime.co.in,
Website: linkintime.co.in,
Contact person: Mr. V. M. Joshi-V. P. North India Operations.

() Share transfer system

Shares lodged for transfer at the Registrar's address are normally processed and approved by Share
Transfer Committee on a fortnight basis, provided the documents are complete in all respects. All
requests for dematerialization of shares are processed and the confirmation is given to the
Depositories within 15 days. Grievances and other miscellaneous correspondence on change of
address, mandates etc. received from Members, are processed by the Registrar and Company within

30 days.
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Pursuant to Clause 47 (c) of the Listing Agreement, the Company obtains certificate from a
practicing Company Secretary on half-yearly basis to the effect that all transfers are completed in the
statutorily stipulated time period. A copy of the certificate, so received, is submitted to both Stock

Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed.

All communications regarding change of address, transfer of shares and change of mandate (if the shares
are held in physical form) can be addressed to our registrar and share transfer agents- Link Intime India

Private Limited.

(k) Shareholding

(a) Thedistribution of shareholding of the Company as on 31st March 2019 is as under:

Distribution Of Shareholding Based On Shares Held
Report Type : AIIINSDL+CDSL+PHYSICAL)
% OF TOTAL
NUMBER OF TOTAL SHARES % OF

SERI SHAREHOLD | SHAREHOL FOR THE ISSUED
AL # SHARES RANGE ERS DERS RANGE CAPITAL

1 1 to 500 30891 52.7051 6961509 1.8710

2 501 to 1000 10815 18.4522 9354455 2.5142

3 1001 to 2000 7726 13.1818 12967594 3.4853

4 2001 to 3000 2559 4.3661 6774638 1.8208

5 3001 to 4000 1279 2.1822 4725870 1.2702

6 4001 to 5000 1425 2.4313 6900994 1.8548

7 5001 to 10000 1971 3.3628 15465826 4.1567

8 10001 | to Fokkkk 1945 3.3185 308916230 83.0270

Total 58611 100.0000 372067116 100.0000
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(b) Category of Shareholders holding shares in the Company as on 31st March 2019 is as under:

Category No. of Shareholders Shares
Physical 32 8029
NSDL 32938 317898332
CDSL 25641 54160755
Total 58611 372067116

(¢ ) Valuation of Shares: The Closing price of the Company’s share as on 315t March, 2019 on the
Stock exchange are given below-

S.No. Name of the Stock Exchange Share Price
1. BSE Limited (“BSE”) Rs. 2.07
2. National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (“NSE”) Rs. 2.05

(d) Market Capitalization: Based on the closing quotation of Rs. 2.05 as on 31t March, 2019 at
NSE, market capitalization of the Company was Rs. 762,737,587.80.

(e) Shareholding pattern of the Company as on 315tMarch, 2019 is as under:

Category | Category of Shareholder Number of Percentage
Code shares (%)
(A) Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group
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1. Indian 137251497 36.8889
2. Foreign 0 0
Sub-Total (A) 137251497 36.8889
(B) Public Shareholding
1. Institutions 190000 0.0511
(a) Financial Institutions/ Banks 15618906 4.1979
Sub-Total (B)(1) 15808906 4.2489
2 Non-Institutions
(a) Body Corporate 9682287 2.6023
(b) Individual Shareholders holding nominal Share
Capital upto Rs. 2 lakhs 70717778 19.0067
(c) Individual Shareholders holding nominal Share £ 2606365 141443
Capital in excess of Rs. 2 lakhs
(((3 Trusts _ 19644 0.0053
Non Resident Indians 2956666 0.7947
() Hindu Undivided Family 6164603 L6569
Eﬁ; Clearipg Members 2366413 0.6360
0 Uncltaumed Share_s 2748 0.0007
- Foreign Companies 74446551 20.0089
) NBFCs registered with RBI 13658 0.0037
(K) Trust Employee 10000 0.0027
Sub-Total (B)(2) 219006713 58.8622
Grand Total 372067116 100.0000

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact
on equity. Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments.

() Plant locations: 3C/1, Ecotech-11, Udyog Vihar, Greater Noida-201306, Uttar Pradesh

(m) Address for correspondence : Corporate Office
Indosolar Limited
3C/1, Ecotech-11, Udyog Vihar,
Greater Noida-201306, Uttar Pradesh
Tel. No. : +91-11-26841375, Email: cirp.indosolar@gmail.com

10. OTHER DISCLOSURES
a) Reconciliation of Share Capital

A qualified practicing Company Secretary carried out a share capital audit to reconcile the total
admitted equity share capital with the national securities depository limited (NSDL) and the Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed equity share capital. The
audit report confirms that the total issued / paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of
shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialised shares held with NSDL and CDSL.
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b)

d)

f)

9)

Code Practices and Procedure for the Fair Disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information and
code of conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by the insider under SEBI (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations 2015.

In compliance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI Circular No.
CIR/1SD/01/2015 dated May 11, 2015; the Company has formulated and published on its official
website i.e. www.indosolar.co.in "Code of Fair Disclosure" and "Code of Conduct for Prevention of
Insider Trading". All concerned have affirmed their compliance with the said Code during the year
under review. As required, a declaration to this effect by the Chairman & Managing Director of the
Company is annexed to this report.

Related Party Transactions

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved and adopted a 'Policy for Related Party
Transactions' and the same has been uploaded on the website of the Company and can be accessed
at: http://www .indosolar.co.in

Disclosure on Materially Significant Related Party Transactions

Materially Significant Related Party Transactions during the financial year 2018-19, that may have
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. The details of the related party

transactions as per Accounting Standard-18 form part of Notes to Accounts.

The Company's Policy on Related Party Transactions is available on the Company's Website i.e.
www.indosolar.co.in.

There were no materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with
the interests of Company at large. Details of all other related party transactions i.e. transactions of
the company, with its promoters, the Directors or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc.
are present under Note No 34 to Financial Statements.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report has been provided part of the Directors’ Report.
Profile of Directors Seeking Appointment / Re-appointment

The profile of the directors seeking appointment / re-appointment forms part of Notice of AGM.

Details of Non-compliance /penalties

i.  Application for CIRP filed on 23 October, 2018 and thereafter 3 independent directors have
submitted their resignation to company on 26" November 2018.Consequently the company has
left with one director only and no board meeting have been called or held thereafter.
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Vi.

Vii.
Viii.

The Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, Risk management Committee and Share Transfer Committee have been constituted
but stands deemed dissolved w.e.f. 261" November 2018 due to resignation of 3 Independent
Directors pursuant to Regulation 19,20,21 and 40 of SEBI(LODR).

Company has not submitted certificate as per provisions of section 40(9) for the half year ended
March 31, 2019.

Non-Adherence of Ind AS for preparation of financial statement.

Company has delayed in filing shareholding pattern for the quarter ended June 30, 2018;
September 30, 2018 December 31, 2018.

Company has delayed in filing statement of investors’ complaints for the quarter ended
December 31, 2018.

Company has delayed in filing Financial Results for the third quarter ended December, 2018
Company has not submitted financial results for the quarter and nine months ended
31st December, 2018 and quarter and year ended 315t March, 2019 within due time. (Regulation
33 of SEBI (LODR), 2015

Company has delayed in filing e-voting results of AGM.

The Company has not appointed Qualified Company Secretary as the compliance officer as per
Regulation 6 of SEBI (LODR), 2015

h) Details of Compliance with Mandatory Requirements and Adoption of Non-mandatory
Requirements.

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements as mandated under Regulation 27
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

i) Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Company promotes the ethical behaviour in all its business activities and has put in place a
mechanism for importing the illegal or unethical behaviour. The Company has a Vigil Mechanism/
Whistle Blower Policy under which the employees are free to report violations of applicable laws and
regulations and the Code of Conduct

)

(n)

During the Year under review, no employee approached the Nodal Officer, MD, or Chairman Audit
Committee. The policy is available on the Company Website www.indosolar.co.in.
Website

The following updates and information can be accessed through the Company’s website i.e.
www.indosolar.co.in

Quarterly/Half Yearly/Annual financial results
Shareholding Pattern

Corporate disclosures made to the Stock Exchange
Details of unclaimed shares

Various policies

GREEN INITIATIVE IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Rule 11 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 2014 permits circulation of annual report through
electronic means to those shareholders whose e-mail IDs are registered with NSDL or CDSL or the
shareholders who have registered their e-mail IDs with the company to receive the documents in
electronic form and physical copies to those shareholders whose e-mail IDs have not been registered
either with the Company or with the depositories. To support this green initiative of the Government ,
shareholders are requested to register their e-mail ID with the DPs, in case shares are held in
dematerialized form and with the RTA, in case the shares are held in physical form and also intimate
changes, if any, in their e-mail I1Ds to DPs / RTA/ Company from time to time.

NOTE:

The details are given purely by way of information. Members may make their own Judgement and are
further advised to seek independent guidance before deciding on any matter based on the information
given therein. Neither the Company nor its officials would be held responsible.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For INDOSOLAR LIMITED

Sd/-
H.R. GUPTA
Managing Director

Date: 31-08-2020 DIN: 00297722
Place: New Delhi
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

INDOSOLAR LIMITED
C-12, Friends Colony (East)
New Delhi 110065

We have examined all relevant records of Indosolar Limited (‘the Company’) for the purpose of
certifying the conditions of Corporate Governance under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the financial year ended March 31, 2019. We have obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of certification.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof. This certificate is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
Management has conducted the affair of the Company.

On the basis of our examination of the records produced, explanations and information furnished, we
certify that except non-compliances mentioned in corporate governance report of annual report of
financial year 2018-19 the Company has generally complied with the conditions of the Corporate
Governance under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

For SSPK & Co.
Company Secretaries
Sd/-
Place: New Delhi Sanjeev Pandey
Date: 31-08-2020 (Mem. no. 10272, COP 17237)

DECLRTION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees inc luding the
Managing Director. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Director. These codes are available on Company’s website.

The Company in respect of the year ended 31st March 2019, has not received any declaration of
Compliance with the code of conduct from the senior management team and the members of the Board
(i.e. Independent Directors) because the Company is under CIR Process and most of the senior
management team members left and Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari, Mr. Vidyut Manubhai Vora and Ms.
Vinati Dev, Independent Directors has resigned from the Company on 26-11-2018.

For and on Behalf of
INDOSOLAR LIMITED
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Sd/-
Place: New Delhi (H. R. GUPTA)
Date: 31-08-2020 Managing Director

DIN: 00297722
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MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATE

We, Hulas Rahul Gupta (DIN: 00297722), Managing Director and Anand Kumar Agarwal, Chief
Financial Officer of INDOSOLAR LIMITED, to the best of our knowledge and belief hereby certify
that:

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 315t march
2019 and:

i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might e misleading.

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standard, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) Thereis no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or
violative of the company’s code of conduct.

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal control, if any, and steps taken or proposed to be taken to rectify
these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:

Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements; and

Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of
the management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over
financial reporting.

For and on Behalf of
INDOSOLAR LIMITED
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process)

Place: New Delhi

Date: 19-02-2020 Sd/- Sd/-
(H. R. GUPTA) (Anand Kumar Agarwal)
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 00297722
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Insolvency resolution professional of Indosolar Limited (Company under CIRF)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the accompanying financial statements of Indosolar Limited,
company under CIRP {“tha Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss {including other comprehensive income),
the Statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in eguity for the year then
ended, and notes to accounts, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information {herein after referred to as “Financial Statements™).

We do not express an opinion on the Financial Statements. Because of the significance of
the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, we have not been
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audt evidence to provide a basis for an audit
gpinion,

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

. We were appointed as auditors of the Company after March 31, 2019 and thus could not
observe the caunting of physical inventories at the beginning and end of the year.

Inventory records were not provided to us for checking. These were not physically
verified by us.

There is a diffarence of Rs, 283.80 lakh in the value of closing stock as stated in audited
halance sheet for the year ended 31¥ March 2018 and books of accounts produced
bafore us with a correspending difference in value of net fixed assets.

Accordingly, we were unable to satisfy ourselves by alternative means concerning the
inventory quantities held at March 31, 201€ and March 31,2019 and valuation thereof.

. Gross block and net block of fixed assets as per books are inconsistent with data
provided in Fixed Asset register. As a result of this, we are unable to verify the written
down value of fixed assets sold during the year and resultant Profit/Loss.

There is a difference of Rs. 283.80 lakh in net fixed assets in the audited balance sheet
for the year ended 31% March 2018 and books of accounts produced before us with a
corresponding difference in value of closing stock.

11-CSC. DDA Markel, A-Block, Saraswat har, DELHI110034 i
Tel.- 041-27020489, 27016286, 95310046631 ’
E-mail ; akgca_1980@yahoa.com
akg@akgandz ssociates. com
www, g4nandasscoiales com
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The Company has a net carrying value of Plant & Machinery of Rs. 8075.61 lakh, (ii)
CWIP of Plant & Machinery Rs. 8,268.65 lakh and (i) Buildings Rs. 4944.77 lakh as at
March 31, 2019. The management had recognized an impairment loss of Rs. 42,819.12
lakh during the year based on value in use as on 30.09.2018.

The impairment loss in Plant & Machinery and CWIP was based on fair value less cost of
sales (realizakle walug) determined by a registered valuer as on 30.09.2018 and for
impairment in case of building the registered valuer report as on 29.03.2018 was
referred. Further, the coampany has not dene impairment test and not booked resultant
impairment loss as on 31.03.2019.

Thus we are unable to comment on the adeguacy of the impairment loss recognized

during the year ended March 31, 2018 and the consequential impact, if any, on the
accompanying statement.

. The Company has plant and machinery under installation, disclosed under CWIP,
aggregating to Rs, 25,354.8 lakh in respect of which management has recognized an
impairment loss of Rs. 18,056.14 lakh during the year ended 31st March, 2019 based on
recoverable value of the assets as on 30" September determined using value in use
method and is therefore dependent on the various factors considered in making
projections by the management. In the absence of sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence with respect to the uncertainty underlying the assumptions particularly the
timing of expacted imposition of antifsafeguard duty and installation of Line -C and
commencement of its commercial production, used in the long term projections, we are
unable to comment on adequacy of the impairment loss recognized during the year
ended 31st March, 2019 and the consequential impact, if any, on the accompanying
statement.

Further, the company has not done impairment test and not booked resultant impaimment
loss as aon 31.03.2019.

. We were unable to confirm or verify balances of accounts receivable and accounts
payables included in the Balance Sheet of total amount of Rs.14.53 lakh and Rs.8570.75
lakh respectively as at March 31, 2015,

. Balances of UBI, Bank of Baroda, Corporation Bank and ARCIL are not reconciling with
the statement provided. Interest on borrowing in respect of facllities from Corporation
bank, Union bank of India and Bank of Baroda has been booked only till September and
Interest on lean taken over by ARCIL not booked. Being the company under CIRP, there
is difference in total interest/ penal interest / expenses / others of approximately Rs.
92187 lakhs pertains to this year or earlier years between cdaims admitted by Resolution
Professional and balances in books. o

. Input tax credit claimed under GST are not reconciling with books of accounts.

. The Company (being an EOU} has not been able to meet its commitment under the
Foreign Trade Policy on the basis of which the Company imported certain raw material,
stores and spares and machineries without payment of custom duty. As on 31st March,
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2019 the Company's NFE is positive by Rs. 19,140.38 lakh without considering the import
value of amertization of Line-C. However, after amortisation of value of line C NEF
becomes negative by Rs. 29,624,58. The company is not able to achieve positive NFE
during the stipulated time; the company would be liable to duties and penalties payable
in accordance with Notification No. 52/2003 Cus. Dated 31.03.2003. Presently we are
unable to asseiss upon the possible impact if any on the accompanying statement.

In the matter of Company's claim for eligibility of capital subsidy under SIP scheme of
Govt. of India. The uncertainty exists with regard to its quantum and receipt of claim
pending its appraisal by Department of Electronics & Information Technology (DEIT). In
the absence of the reasonable assurance, the management has not recognized the claim.

Most of the vauchers and other supporting documents are not made available to us for
verification.

Company has not complied with companias act with respect to Secretarial Audit, cost
Audit and Listing Agreement, Further, in the absence of Secretarial Audit we cannot
comment on detailed compliances of Companies Act provisions.

Company is under CIRP as explained in Note 45 of Notes to the Financial Statements,

The non adherence of IND AS as explained in Note 46 of Notes to the Financial
Statements. ‘

As a result of above matters, we were unable to determine whether any
adjustments might have been found necessary in respect of assets and liabilities
in the Balance Sheet, and the corresponding elements making up the Statement
of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement,

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to

Note No. 15(1}( ¢ } of the financial statements regarding revocation of One Time
Settlement ("OTS) Schemc from Union Bank of India (Bank).Consequently, Interest
waived amounting to Rs. 17,389.48 lakh upto 31.03.2017 is to be reversed and (/i)
interest for the interest free period ie. April 2017 to March 2018 (amount not
ascertained) is become payable, (i} The bank has also withdrawn other concessions i.e.
lower rate of interest charged on outstanding amaunt for the period from April -2018
onwards, consequential interest need to be booked (amount not ascertained) (iv)
Preference Shares become due and payable immediately.

. Note No. 9 of the financial statements regarding inventories. Closing Stock of finished

goods and raw material has been taken as nil.

Note No. 45 regarding verification and admission of claims by RP. Pending finalization of
resolution plan, the impact of such claims if any that may also have not been considered
in the preparation of the financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit malters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context ofour audit of the financial statements as a
wholg, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not providea separate opinien on
these matters.

Except for the matters described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinian and Material
uncertainty related to going concern, we could not determine whether there are otherkey
audit matters to communicate in our report.

Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern

We draw attenticn to
Note No. 44 A (iv}) of notes to the financial statements relating to Gaing Concern.
Note No. 45 relation to Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process

In view of above uncertainties we are also unable to comment on the ability of
the Company to continue as a going concern and consequential classification and
adjustment to the accompanying financial statements, if any that might hava
been necessary had the financial statements being prepared under liquidation
basis. The extent of the effect on the resultant adjustments to the accumulated
losses, assets and liabilities as at 31° March 2019 is presently not ascertainable,

Information other than financial statements and Auditor’'s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information,
We have not obtained the other information comprises of the finandial or non-fnancial
information (other than financial statemants and the auditor's report thereon) included in an
entity’s annual report.

Cur gpinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance/conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the pther
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information chtained prior to the date

of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

74



Management and Those Charged with Governance's Responsihility for the
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible far the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Accaunts) Rules, 2015,

This respansibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
af appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reason able
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records relevant te the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as going concarn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibility

Cur objectives are to abtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exarcise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We atso:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstaiement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internai cantrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the drcumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act,
we are also responsible foar explaining our apinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events ar conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. Howewer, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a Joing concem,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements reprasent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and guaiitative factors in {i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficizncies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide thase charged with governance with a statement that we have camplied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the malters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s repart unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to oubweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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b}

c)

d)

€)

a)

h)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section143 of the Act, we

give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

As required by section 143 {3) of the Act, we report that:

As described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, we sought but were unable
to obtain all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

Due to the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
paragraph, we are unable to state whether proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company s¢ far as appears from our examination of those books;

Due to the possible effects of the maiter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
paragraph, we are unable to state whether the Balance Sheet, Staternent of Profit and
Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account;

Due to the possible effects of the matter described in {he Basis far Disclaimer of Opinion
paragraph, we are unable to state whether the aforesaid financial statements comply
with the Accounting Standards under Section 133 of the Act read with the relevant rules
issued there under:

The matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph above, in our
apinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

As informed by the management, neither written representations has been received from
the directors as on March 31, 2019, and nor taken on record by the Board of Directors
regarding disqualification of directors as on March 31, 2019, from being appeointed as a
director in terms of section 164{2) of the Act. S0 we are unable to comment upon this,

Statutory payments made to authorities (ESI and PF) during the year 2018-19 are
inconsistent with the salary amount booked for the year,

TDS net deducted on salaries and professicnal fees amounting to Rs. 71.3 lakhs ang TCS
not paid/collected on scrap sale of Rs. 2.7 lakhs.

The company has not complied with the following provisions of Companies Act 2013 and
Securities and Exchange Board Of India (Lsting Obligations And Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

i. Appointment of qualified Company Secretary as the compliance cfﬁcér as
per Regulation 6.

i,  Submission of Annual Secretarial Compliance Report.
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k)

. Submission of Certificate of PCS (Regulation 40(10)).

iv.  Submission of unaudited quarterly financial result along for limited review report for
the quarter ended December and March 2019.( Regulation 33)

v.  Filling of BEN -2, MSME Form-1, Active INC - 22A and Forms for directors
resignations.

vi.  Appaintment of internal auditor (Sec 138 of the Companies Act, 2013).

vii.  Holding of minimum number of meetings of board. (Sec 173(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013.)

vill.  Constitution of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Risk managemant Committee and Share
transfer Committee. (Sec 177 and 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Reguiation
15, 20, 21 and 40 of SEBI(LODR).

ix.  Secretarial audit for the year 2018-19 (Regulation 24A and Sec 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013.) '

X.  Application for CIRP filed on 239 Qctober, 2018 and thereafter 3 independent
directors namely Mr. Vidyut Vora, Ms.Vinati Dev and Mr. Gautam Singh Kuthari has
submitted their resignation to company on 26" November 2018. However such
directors have not filed form DIR 11 with MCA and company have also nat filed
form DIR 12. Consequently the company has left with one director only and no
board meeting have been called or held thereafter. Further financial statements are
approved and signed by only one director Mr. H, R. Gupta,

Xi.  Cost Audit for the year 2018-19 (Sec 148 of the companies Act, 2013)

Further, in the absence of Sacretarial Audit we cannot comment cn detailed compliances
of Companies Act provisions and Regulations of Securities and Exchange Board of India.

The reservation relating ta the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph above.,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the company and the cperating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”, Qur report expresses a disciaimer opinion gn the adequacy and
the operating effectiveness of the company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting; and internal audit has also not been taken placed by company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules,2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I Due to the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion paragraph, we are unable to state whether the Company has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements;
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Due to the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of

Opinion paragraph, we are unable to state whether the Company has made
provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material

foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts including derivative contracts;

There is no amount reguired to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For A.K.G. & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN D02688N

L

Flace: Delta CA. HA'RVINDER SINGH
Date: 19-Feb-2020 Partner
UDIN: 20087889AA8ABKB0%3 M. No. 087889
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

On the basis ofsuch checks as we considered appropriate and according to the
informaticn and explanationsgiven to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

1. Inrespect of its fixed assets

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
examination of books and records, the company has not maintained the records,
however the same was not showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets. Also,Gross black and net black of fixed assets as per books
are inconsistent with data provided in Fixed Asset register

{b) There is not sufficient staff te carry out physical verification of fixed assets and there
i5 no document on record to reflect the physical verification done of fixed assets.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company does not have any
immovable properties which are freehold and held in the name of company as at the
balance sheet date. In respect of immovable properties taken on |ease, Lease hold
improvements have been disclosed as fixed assets in the financial statements, the
lease agreement are in the name of the company. However supplement lease
agreement as mentionad In lease deed are not on record.

2. Inventory records have not been provided to us for verification.

3. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not granted any loans secured or unsecured to the companies/firms, limited
liability partnership or other parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 of
the companies Act, 2013. :

4, In our opinion and according te the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not given loans, guarantees, security or made any investments which need
ta comply with the section 185 and 186 of Companies Act, 2013.

5. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit during the year within the meaning of section 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

6. The Company is required to maintain cost records which have been specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of companies act, 2013,
However, no cost records have been provided to us for verification. Cost audit was not
conducted for the year 2018-19.
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10.

i1,

12.
13.

(a)According to the records of the company, the company is generally not requiar in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and service tax, Excise Duty,
Provident Fund, ESI and other statutory dues applicable over the campany.

The company has not deposited ESI & FF on salary of Rs. £2,38,544 paid after
September 2018,

(b)According to the information given to us and as per the books of accounts produced
before us, the company has foliowing dues relating to Goods and service tax, sales tax,
income tax, custom tax, excise duty, cess as at 3ist March,2019 that have not been
deposited on account of dispute:

PARTICULAR - As at March 31,
2019
B ___|{Rs. In lakhs)
Duty forgone demand of customs pending settiement 1,193.43
¥at (A.Y. 2014-15) 4.35
Total 1187.78 |

Further, in the matter of Company's claim for eligibility of capital subsidy under SIP
scheme of Govt. of India. The uncertainty exists with regard to its quantum and receipt
of claim pending its appraisal by Department of Electronics & Information Technology
(DEIT),

Based on our audit procedures ang according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or bank
or debenture holders. (Refer Note 45 of notes te the financial statements)

The company has not raised any meoney by way of initial public deposit offer, further
public offer, debt instrument or term loans during the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us, based upon the audit
procedures performed and representations made by the management, we report that no
fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during course of our audit

In our opinion and according ta information and explanation given to us, the company
haspaid/ provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule Y to the Act,

The company is not a Nidhi company and hence this clause is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, all transactions
with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
and are disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards,
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14. Company has not made any preferential aitotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible or debentures during the year.

15. Based on the representation given by the management, the comparny has not entered
info any non-cash transactions with the directors or other persons connected to directors
and hence the provision of section 192 of the companigs act is not applicable.

16. The company is nat requireg to be registercd under section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of
India, 1934.

For AK.G. & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
~ FRN. 0N2688N

.-;f.

Place: Delfi CA. Harvinder Singh

Date: 19-Feb-2020 Fartner
M. No. 087889
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Control under Clause {1} of Sub-section 3 of section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act“)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Indosolar
Limited, company under CIRP ("the Company™) as on 31% March 2019 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the company for the year ended on that
date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Contraols

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining interna
financial controis based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAT").

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
Internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, tha
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to EXpress an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Finarcial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controis, both applicable to an avdit of Internal Financial Controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls gver financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidance about the adequacy of

the nternal financial controls system cover financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting includad

b
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obtaining an understanding of nternal financial controls over financial reparting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
pracedures selected depend on the auditor's Judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud
Qr arrar.

We befleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and dppropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial contral over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external PUrposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's interal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS
financia! statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautharized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that caould have a material effect on the Ind AS
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal financial controls over financial reporting,
Including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with tha policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion
Cue to insufficient staff and availability of relevant records, in our opinion, the Company
does not has an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and

such intermnal financial controls over financial reporling were not operating effectively as
at 31% March, 2019, We have not been provided with the internal contral over financial

o
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reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal contral stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Repoting issued Dy the Institute of Chartered Accoy ntants of India,

For AK.G, & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 002688N

e L . ;,‘;-'h' Yl o

CA. Harvinder Singh
Place: Delhi Partner

Date: 19-Feb-2020 M. No. 087889
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Intosolar Limited
Balance Sheeat 35 at 31 March, 2019
fAll amounts in Rupees in [zkh, uniass otheryrise stated)

Particulars Notes As at 31 March 215 As at 31 March 2018
Assets
1 Noh-current assats
{al Property. Plant & Equipment 4fa) 15,430,958 42 636.80
{b] Capizal work-in-progress 4(b) 8,293.65 25,747.97
{c} Other intangible assets 4{c}) 12.79 1726
1d} Financial assets
(i) Loans 5 157.69 403.90
iy Cther fimancial assets (] . 37.27
te} Deferrad taw assets (Net) 7 . -
(f} Other non-cutrent assers g 36.04 1051062
Total non current assats 23,9356.15 69,944.31
Z Current assets
(a} Ivventories g9 517.34 2,665.61
{b) Financtal assets
{i} Trade receivables 10 14,55 29130
{ti} Cash and cash equivalents 11 6707 292 46
(Fit) Bark balarees (other than eqshk & cash equivalents) 12 40511 352.40
{iv} Loans 5 . 477
{v) Other financial assets B 55 &4 -
{c] Other current assets L] 85549 221.02
Tatal current assets 1,849.25 4,427.56
TOTAL ASSETS _ ___25,BB5.43 §4,371.87
Equity and Liakilitics
Equity
{a) Equity share capitai 13{aj[h) 37,20.71 37,206.71
tblinstruments entircly Bquity in nature 13{h} - -
(b} Other equity 14 (135,355 20} (82,859 671
Total Equity {98,148.49) (45,652.95)
Liabilities
1 Men-current liabilitias
{a) Financial labilitias
Borrowings 15 and 16 C5H4.32 3044302
{b) Provizions 17 43.79 48.79
Total non current lizhilities B33.11 30,491.81
£ Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
{i) Borrowings is 3,557.02 3,548.20
(i} Trade pavables 19 3,570.75 6,237.06
Uii) Other financial liabilities 20 1143,561.10 79,524 20
(b} Other current Nigbilities Z1 233.70 20668
ic) Provisions 17 . 1£.25 1887
Total current liabilities 123,400.81 89,533.02
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES _ 25 BB5.43 74,371.87
Summary of significant accounting policies 2&3

Mote 1 1o 43 form an integrai part of the balance sheet of
As perour report attached

for AK.G & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Arcountants
|A Firen registration number- 002688M

1 .
N I L R

CA. HARVINDER 5INGH
Fartner
Membership Mo, QB7889

Parea: Delhi
Date @ 19-Feb 2020

the company,

For and an behalf of the Boord of Directors of

Indosalar Hmitled

b.-“x- o

H.R, Gupta

Managing Directar
DIN:00297722 P

!
i

LA :
\M'L i J{'\' L Sl TR
Alna 'Kumar Agarwa) - ——

Chief Financial Officer
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Gulshan Gahka

Resolution Prefessional
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Indoselar Umited

CIN: L1E101DI2005PLC134579

Statement of Profit and Loss for tha year endad 321 March, 2019
{All amounts in Rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

For the year encded 31

For the year ended 31

Parti t
articulars Notes March 2019 March 2018

Incoma
Revenue from operations 22 1,322 35 31.412.37
Otherincame 23 25049 431.15
Total Income {A) 1,612 85 31,843.52
Expenses
Cost of material consurmed 24 1.142.07 21,577.99
Furchase of stackin trade 25 92,98 4.401.94
Change in inventories of finished geads, stock intrade and wark 26 515,19 1.910.30
Employee benefits expense 27 455.99 145767
Finance costs 28 5,003.04 535194
Depreciation and amortisation B¥pensg 29 &, 413.60 2.810.58
Other expanzec 30 1,581 82 4,203,348
Total Expensas (B) 11,795.03 41,713.76
Profit/[Lass) for the period befora finance costs, {9.682.18) (9.870.24)
Profit/{Loss) before exceptional items and tax {A-B) o {8,682.18} {9,870.24)
Exceptional items [Profit/{Lass)] (refer note 42} {12,819.12) [6,410.96)
Profit/{Loss} before tax {52,501.30) (16,221.20)
Tak expanse
Curreni Tax 31 - .32
Defernod Tax ) - -
Profit/{Loss) after tax jnet) {52,501.30) {16,283.52)
Other Comprehensive Incomef{loss}
A L] Items that will not be reclassihiod to peofit or tass

-Remeasurements of net defined benefiy pfans 5.77 11.55
(i} Income tax relating to items that wiil not be reclassified to - -
B {il ttems that will be reclassified to profit or Ipss
{ii] Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit : -
Other Comprehensive Income f{loss) _ 5.77 1155
Total Comprehensive meame; loss) - {52,495.53] {16,271.97)
Earning per equity share [EPS}in Rs, 32
- Basic {14.11) (8.44)
- Diluted {14.11) i4.44)
summary of sipgniffcant accounbing policies 2&3

Mate 1 to 48 form an integral part of the balance shaet of the company.

As per vur report attached

Far A.K.G & ASSOCIATES
Chortered Accountants
ICA| Firm registration number: 002684N

N

CA. HARVINDER SINGH
Parinar
Membership ho.: 087880

Plare: Delhi
Date: 19-Feb 2020

For and on behoif of the Board of Directors of

Indosalar Limited

) o
H.R. Gupta
klanaging Director
DIN:002977232 4
N f S
Ak (umar Agarral
Chiicsf Flpancial OHicer

~j
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Indosclar Limited
Cash Flow Statament for the year ended 31 March, 2019
dallamaunts In Rupees in akh, unless otherwise stated)

For the year endad
31 March 2019

Forthe year endad
31 March 2018

A. Cash flow from operating aoivitles

Loss biefore tax as per Statemen of Profit and Loss (52,501.30) 116.281.20)
Adfustments for:

Depreciation end Amartisation £ pense 2,413 489 2.810.58
intarest Expanses R.0193.04 5,221.12
Interest income (52.39) {179.26)
Provision for doubtful dehts written back - 1347
Mresnsion for doubtful oehts 79551

Provisian for service max Aot racoverathe wrilten oack (112 .20)
service tax not recoverable written off 21.60

Exceptional items

Walver of tnterest cn loam [15,211.12)
-Impairment Lasses of Property, Plant & Equipment 4281912 30, 700.00
Gain on modification of loas dug to 1air vaiuation of 15 OCCRPS 19,077.92]
Zad debits writton off 6018 13.21
Pemurrage/detention charges; -
Unrea'ized Fareign Exchange Rate Differerce (Gain) / Loss [Net) 3.66 64 07
{Gain / Loss an Sale gF Property, 2lant and Equipment [net] 1039 -
Provisions/Lishilities ne longer required written back (£48.49)
Amartised ancillary cost of arrarging the borrowirgs - 32.54
Operating profil before working capital changes {1,580.89) {2,033.94)
Movemeants in Warking Capital :

(Increasclfeecraasa in Trade Receivables {586.68) 83012
{Increasel/decrease ir Inventaries 212827 993117
(increasel/decrease i Other firarcial assets and Cther assets 180.94 809,19
Increase/(decreasel i~ Trads payables 2,333.p49 3432499
Increasef(decrease) in Other liabilities aad Provisicns TEY.36 {1,167.65)
Cash used from operations 3,244.69 2elR.78
Cirect taxes {paid)/refund receiver - [6.20)
Net cash generated from operating activities 3,2414.59 292267
B. Cash flow from investing activities

Capital expenditure on Proparty, Plant and Equipment, including cagital work in {2,337 .36) (1,204 %5}
Imapirment Lasses of CWIP - -
Proceeds fror sale of Property, Plart and Fquipmen 2333

Movemert in Fixeo Deposits with Barks 2.71} 242,00
Interest recaved L 33.82 162.28
Net cash used in investing activitivg {2,283 42] {800.47]
€. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of share capital -
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) Long term borrowings {197.E5) {457.30}
Proceeds fromy (repayment of) Short term borrowings 1082 {1,716.75)
lnterest paid (989.68) [320.23)
Net cash used in financing activities {1,186.71) (2,434.27)
Net increase in cash and cash eguivalants 1225.48) (372.07}
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 20245 GR4.53
Add: Cxchange loss/[gain) on fareign currcney in hand - -
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 67.01 297.46
Cash and cash equivalent eamprises:

Cash in hand 0.1 230
Balances with seheduled banks ) 6G.BY 29016

I §7.01 297 46

Notes:

{a) The above cash flow skatement has been prepared usder the “lndirec Method” as set out inthe fndian Accounting Standard - 7 Cash

Flow Staternents sperified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
(b) Note 110 48 form an integral pa-t of the halance sheet of the rom pany.

A5 percur report attached

Far ARG EASSOCIATES For and on hehaif of the Board of Directars of
Chartered Acrauntants [ndosolar Limited ]
ICAI Firm regisiration number: DDZGE8N v 1, i Ll '::—-"Tj
] - I i [ :: L * T L\ i'.__ -'":h'-\\
S Ve R ! H.R. Gupha

CA. HARVINDER SINGH ' Managing Dircrtor
Partrer A297722
Membershin Mo.: G87889

Place: Delhi Chieflkinancial O cer
Dato : 10-Meb-2020 88 |
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Indosolar Lirnited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March, 2019
{All ampunts 1 Kupees in lakh. anless otherw'se slaed)

-A Equity Share Capital

Number of Amount
shargs
Equity shares of Bs,10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid (refer nate 13(a))
As at 1st April 2017 358,130,000 35,5813.00
Increasef{decrease) during the vear 13,537,116 1.393.71
As at 31st March 2018 472067116 37206 11
Increasef{vecrease) curing the vear : -
As at 31st March 2018 372 067,116 37,206.71 _
& Instruments entirely equity in nature Number of Amaount
shares _
Compulscrily Convertible Preference Shares (refar note 13{k))
As at 15t April 2017 2,500,000 550.00
Increase/[decreaze) dur.ng the year 19,500.000) {950.20]
As at 315t March 2018 - -
Ircreasefidecreasel during the year - B}
As at 31st Marzh 2019 B _
L  Other Equily
Far the year ended 31 March, 2019
p 1
Equity Reserves and Surplus Total
) _ Interest free Securities Retained
Balance as at 31 March 2017 384.24 22,153.30 {89,202.08)| (60,664,542
Prof t for the year ) - - {t6,283.02) {16,283.52)
Allatment of equity shares T6. 84 76.84
Other Camprehensive Income _
| Re-mheasuremen: of defined benefiz afans - 1155 11.55
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 76.84 [16,271.97) {16,195.14)
Balance as at 1 April 2018 ) 384.24 22 230,14 {105,474.05) (82,859.67)
Profit far the year {52,501.30) {52,501.34}
Allat~ent of 2o iy shares -
Other Comprehensive Incame _
Re-measurement of de“ned benefit plans 5.77 5.77
Tatal Comprehensive Income for the year - (52,485.53) {52,495.53)
) |
Balance as at 31 March 2019 3IRa.24 | 2223014 {157,969.58)| (135,355.20}

i) Refer note 14 “or rature and purpose of reserves

Mote 1 to 48 farin an intenral part of <he balsnce shest of 1ne Com GJarv.

AL per our repart attazhea

For AK.G & ASSOCIATES
Chortered Arcountonts
ICAIL Fizon registration numoer; ANZEREN

CA.HARVINDER SINGH
Pariner
Membership Mo, - DETE89

I TP . veg”

Flacc: (reih;
Cate @ 19-Teb-2024

Far and on behalf of the Baard of Directors of
indosolar Limited

—_

CIN:03287722

‘ -r 1 ' "5:‘::
H.R. Gupta
Managing Director ¢ %
{. ,/ Taker: un Record

T

Guishan Gaba

N
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Indosolar Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amounts in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. Corporate information

Indosolar Limited is 2 public company domiciled and headquartered in India. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Naticnal Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).
The Company is the leading Indian manufacturer of solar photovoltaic cells and its
manufacturing facility is located at Greater Noida, Uttar Pradesh.

The Campany had shut down its production facilities w.e.f 15th May, 2018.

The company is under Corporate Insolvency Reselution Process under Insolvencyand
Bankruptcy Code. Its affairs, business and assets are being managed by the Resolution
Professional appointed by the Hon'ble NCLT New Delhi vide its order dated 12 April 2019
under the provisions of the Code as Interim Resolution Professional and subsequently as per
section 22 of the Code as Resolution Professional of Indosolar Limited.

As per the Carporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), in our case Form G has been
issued andtwoResclution Plans were submitted Resolution Applicants, which are under
consideration,

. Authorization of Financial Statements

After admission of application by the Hon’ble NCLT, Mr. Gulshan Gaba has in his capacity as
IRP has taken control and custody of the management and operations of the Company from
16th April 2019. For the information set out in the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 20189, theRP has relied upon the accuracy and veracity of any and all infermation
and data provided by the officials of the Company and the records of the Company made
available by such officials. For all such infarmation and data, the RP has assumed that such
information and data are in the conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable laws with respact to the preparation of the financial statements and that they
give true and fair view of the position of the Campany as of the dates and period indicated
therein. Accordingly, the RP is not making any representations regarding accuracy, veracity
or compieteness of the data or information in the financial statements. As the powers of the
Board of Directors have been suspended, the above results have not been adopted by Board
of Directors. However, the same have been signed by Mr. H.R, Gupta, Managing Director
and Mr. Anand Kumar Agarwal, Chief Firancial Officer of the Company confirming accuracy

and completeness af the results and taken on record by Mr. Guishan Gaba, Resalution
Professional.
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Indosclar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Allamounts in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

- Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied by The Company in the preparation of its financial
statements are listed below. Such accounting policies have been appliad consistantly to all
the periads presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

{i} Basis of preparation

a} Statement of compliance with Ind AS:
These financial statements have heen prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Indian AccountingStandards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant
provisions of the Act,

b) Basis of maasurement

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for
the followingmaterial items those have been measured at fair value as required by
relevant IndAS : .

-certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;

~-defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

Also, the fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised cost are required to
be disclosed in the said financial statements.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for assets.

Fair value measurement;

Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date {that is, an
exit price). It is a market-based Mmeasurement, not an entity-specific measurement. The fair
value measurement Is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market far the asset or
liability

T (I lL
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Indosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
[All amounts in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair
value of an asset or a liahility is measured using the assumptians that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or lisbility, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
abservable inputs and minimising the use of unohservable inputs.

Where required/appropriate, external valuers are involved.

Alf financial assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy established by ind AS113, that
Categorizes into three iavels, the inputs to valuation technigues used to measure fair value.
These are based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurerment date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly(i.e. as prices) or indirectly(i.e. derived

from prices).

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices {unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liahilities {Level 1 inputs) and the lowest pricrity to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs), ;

\ I
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c)

Indasolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
[All amounts in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For financial assets and lizbilities maturing within one year from the Batance Sheet date and
which are not carried at fair value, the carrying amount approximates fair value due to the
short maturity of these instruments,

The Company recognises transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of
reporting period during which change has occurred.

Current non-current classification:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-

current classification, An asset istreated as current when it is:

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelvemonths after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

s Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

» Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

* tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlament of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reportingperiod

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and fiabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, Based on the nature of products / services and time
between acquisition of assets for processing / rendering of services and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents, operating ¢ycle is less than 12 months. However, for the purpose
of current/non-current classification of assets & liabilities period of 12 months has been
considered as normal operating cycle. ‘

QK (i\i Ly t ;ﬂ\;”.f’.
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d}

e)

Indosolar Limitad
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (i.e. the “functional
currency”). The finzncial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the national currency of
India, which is the functional currency of the Company.

Rounding of amounts:

All amounts disclosed in the financial staternents and notes are in Indian Rupees in lakhs
rounded off to two decimal places as permitted by Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,
unless atherwise stated.

(i1} Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and

‘measurement principles of the Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates

and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and iiabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses and the
results of operations during the reporting perioc. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis,
Such estimates & assumptions are based on management evaluation of relevant facts &
circumstances as on date of financial statements, Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revisian affects only that
period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

{iii)Revenue recognition: Sale of goods:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership in the goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract, which
is mainly upon delivery and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. The Company
retains no effective control of the goads transferred to a degree usually associated with
ownership and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration
that will be derived from the sale of goods. Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivabie, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates
and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the gavernment which are lavied on sales such

as goeds and services tax, value added tax, etc. i
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{All amounts in Rupees lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

Interest Income:

interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of a
financial fiability or a financial asset to their gross carrying amount,

{iv}Property, plant and equipment [PPE)
Praperty, plant and equipment is stated st acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any, Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises —

i. its purchase price, including import duties and non —refundable purchase taxes {net of
duty/ tax credit availed), after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

fi. any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

lii. borrowing cost directly attributable to the qualifying asset in accordance with accounting
policy on barrowing cost.

iv. the costs of dismantling, removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

PPE in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includas direct costs, related pre-
operational expenses and for gualifying assets applicable borrowing costs to be capitalised
in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy. Administrative, general overheads and
other indirect expenditure {including borrowing costs) incurred during the project period
which are not directly related to the project nor are incidental thereto, are expensed,

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use ason the date of
Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-In-progress”. Theyare classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other items of PPE,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

d\ {11_ L\_‘ &fﬂ
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon dispoesal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/part of the plant and
equipment separately, if the companent/part has a cost which is significant to the total cost
of the plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially different from that of the
remaining plant and equipment,

Machinery spares which meets the criteria of PPE is capitalized and depreciated over the
useful iife of the respective asset.

Deemed cost on transition to ind AS:

Under the Previous GAAP, ali property, plant and 2quipment were carried at in the Balance
Sheet on basis of historical cost, except leasshold land which was carried at revalued
amount. The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property,
plant and equipment recognised as of April 1, 2016 (the transition date) measured as per the
previous GAAP {including previous GAAP revaluation of leasehold land as at 31st December,
2008) and use such carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Depreciation:

Depreciation on fixed assets (other than freehold land and capital work in progress) is
pravided on the straight line method, based on their respective estimate of useful lives, as
given below. Estimated useful lives of assets are determined based on internal assessment
estimated by the management of the Company and supported by technical advice wherever
so required. The manzgement believes that useful livas currently used, which is as
prescribed under Schedule li to the Companies Act, 2013, fairly reflect its estimate of the
useful lives and residual values of fixed assets, though these lives in certain cases are
different from lives prescribed under Schedule I1.

I'
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Type of assets " 1 usefullifein years
B Leasehold Land ) Over Lease Pericd i.e.
20 years
éuildings -
Factory Building | " 30 v'ealrs
| Non Factory Buildings ) | 60vyears
Plant and Machinery * - - 5— 25yéars
B Furniture and Fixtures — 10 years |
B Office Equipment 5 \,rears_'
| Vehicles . | 8-10vyears
Computers B | 3vé'ar5

*Based on internal technical evaluation and external advised received, the management
believes thatthe useful lives as considered for arriving at the depreciation rates, best
represent the period over whichmanagement expect to use these assets. Hence, the useful
lives for these assets is different from theuseful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule
Il of the Companies Act, 2013,

Assets individually casting Rs. 5000 or less are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e., when it is in the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is
retired from active use and is held for disposal and the date that the asset is derecognised.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives an the
same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

Oepreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically inciuding at
the end of each financial year. Any changes in depreciation method, useful lives and residual
values are treated as a change in accounting estimate and applied/adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate, |
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{v) Intangible assets
{dentifiable intangible assets are recognized when the Company controls the asset, it is
probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and
the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

At initial recognition, the separately acquired intangible assets with finite usefu! lives are
recognised at cost of acquisition. Following initial recognition, the intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amertisation and accumulated impairment fosses, if
any.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the balance sheet are
disciosed as ‘intangible assets under development'.

An intangible asset should be derecognised (eliminated from the balance sheet) on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expectec from its use and subsequent disposal,
Gains or lesses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset should be
determined as the difference between the net disposa! proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and should be recognised as income or expense fn the statement of profit and loss.

Deemed cost on transition to ind AS:

Under the Previous GAAP, all Intangible assets were carried at in the Balance Sheet on basis
of historical cost. The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2016 {*he transition date) measured as per the
previous GAAP and use such carrying vaiue as its deemed cost as of the transition date,

Amortisation:

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of
respective assets from the dete when the asset are available for use, on pre-rata basis.
Estimated useful lives by major class of finite-life intangible assets are as follows:

| Type of assets Useful life in years |
i Computer software | Eyears

The amertisaticn period and the amortisation method for finite-life intangible assets is
reviewed at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered
to modify the amortisation period or methad, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates and adjusted prospectively.

"FK (‘!‘ L 1:
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(All amounts in Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated])

{vi}Financial instruments
Financial Assets:
Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument,

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, except for trade
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. In case of financial assets which
are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction costs are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction costs are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets.

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at

* amortised cost (if it is held within a business medel whose ohjective is to hold the asset
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding)

* fair value through profit and loss {FVTPL)

* fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTQCH,

Derecognition:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash fiows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Asset:
In accardance with ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL}) madel for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets and credit risk
eXposures. .
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The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables or contract revenue receivables. Simplified approach does not require the
Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime £CL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. This involves
use of provision matrix constructed on the basis of historical credit loss experience and
adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss aliowance is based on the
ageing of the receivables that are due and the rates used in the provision matrix.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive {l.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the origina! EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit lossas
resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on
historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity
operates or any other appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

ECL impairment loss aliowance (or reversal} recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial Liahilities and equity instruments:

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument,

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its fiabilities. Equity instruments issued by a company entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

§ e
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Financial {iabilities

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Cornpany becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs,

The fair value of a financial in strument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price,
If the Company detarmines that the fair value at initial recoghition differs fram the
transaction price, difference between the fair value at inttial recognition and the transaction
price shall be recegnized as gain or loss unfess it qualifies for recegnition as an asset or
tiability. This normaily depends on the relationship hetween the lender and borrower of the
reason for providing the loan. Accordingly, in casz of interest-free loan from promoters to
the Company, the difference between the loan amount and its fair value is treated as an
equity contribirtion to the Company.

In accordance with Ind AS 113, the fair value of g financial liability with a demand feature is
not less than the amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date that the

amount could be required to be paid.

The Company's financia! liabilities include trade and other payables and Inans and
borrewings including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financia! liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and baorrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as welf as through the EIR amortisation process.
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Amortised cost is calcylated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The FIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless and to the extont capitalised as part
of costs of an asset.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period, The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futyre cash payments {including all fees and
paints paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financiat liability, or
(where appropriate] a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Trade and other payables
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liahifity is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial fiability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
Carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financiai assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance Sheet if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amount

and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and sattle the liabilities
simultaneously.

(vii) Preference shares
a. Convertible preference shares
Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on

the terms of the contract. f
A
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On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivaient non-convertible instrument. This amount
is classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost {net of transaction costs) until
it is extinguished on conversion or rademption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and
included in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed
classification, Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible preference shares based on the aliocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are initially recognised.

b. Contingent Convertible preference shares

A contingent convertible preference shares is an instrument that is convertible, at the aption
of the holder, only on the occurrence of g contingent event outside of the control of the
holder or the issuer. If the contingent event accurs then the halder has the option, but not
the ohligation, to convert, If the contingent event does not occur, then the instrument will
be settled in cash at maturity/due dates.

The fact that conversion is only contingent does not mean the instrument has no equity
compenent, If, on occurrenca of the contingent event, exercise of the conversion option
would result In the exchange of 2 fixed number of the issuer's own equity instruments for a
fixed amount of cash {in the functional currency of the issuing entity), the conversion option

would meet the definition of an equity instrument under {AS 32 and the overall instrumeant
would be treated as compound instrument.

Whether or not the contingency is within the centrol of the issuer is an important
consideration when classifying financial instruments with contingent settlement provisions
as either financial liabilities or equity.
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If a contingent settlement provision is regarded as autside the contral of the issuing entity,
the instrument is classified as a liability by the issuer. If a contingent settlement provision is
regarded as within the control of the reporting entity, the instrument will be classified as
equity, provided that it has no other features requiring its classification as a liability and that
the contingent settlement eventis also outside the control of the halder.

The Company has issued 1% Uptionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference
shares (OCCRPS) to Union Bank of India under Dbt Settlement Agreement pursuant to Cne
Time Sett!ement with them.In case of an event of defauit by the Company in timely
repayment/redemption as defined in the said Agreement, the Bank has a right to convert
the preference shares into equity at a Conversion Price, being higher of par value and
market value of the equity share in accordance with SEB) formula.Hence the contingent
settlement event is Event of defaylt by the Company which is not within the issuer’s {the
Company's| control and the exercise of the conversion option would result in the exchange
of avariable number of the issuer’s oWn equity instruments,

The Company, the issuer of the instrument does nat have the uncenditional right to avoid
delivering cash or another financial asset {or otherwise to settie it in such a way that it
would be 3 financia! liability), Therefore, it Is a financial liability of the Company.

{viii} Impairment of Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets other than inventories are assessed at each
reporting date to ascertain whether there s any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amrount is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognised, as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverzble amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is ascertained
through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflacts
the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the
asseis. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are Erouped at the lowest levels into
cash ganerating units for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

Impairment losses recognised in prior years are reversed when there is an indication that
the impairment losses recognised no longer exist or have decreased. Such reversals are
recognised as an increase in carrying amounts of assets to the extent that it does not exceed
the carrying amounts that would have been determined net of amortization or
depreciation).Impairment of assets was carried out on 30.09.2018 detalls of which is given
under Note 44 (bi{iii). /
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{ix}Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs comprises interest expense or borrowings calcutated using the effective
Interest method and exchange differances arising from fereign currency borrowings to the
extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs,

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cest of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period.

The effective interest rate (EIR} is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
Payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
dppropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. EIR calculation does not tnclude exchange differences,

Borrowing costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of & qualifying asset, which are assets that necessarily take 2 substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are included in the cost of those assets. Such
borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset when it is probable that they
will result in future economic benefits to the entily and the costs can be measured reliably.
Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred,

The capitalisation of barrowing costs as part of tha cost of a qualifying asset commances
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are NECessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or
compieted,

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation, /
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(x} Fereign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), the functional currency of the
Company. items neluded in the financial statements of the Company are recorded using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the
‘functional currency’).

Foreign currency transactions are translated intc the functional currency using exchange
rates at the date of the transaction, Foreign exchange gains and losses from settlament of
these transactions, and from translation of monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting
date exchange rates are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Nan-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at
historical cost are transiated at the exchange rate orevalent at the date of transaction.

Under Previous GAAP, the Company had opted for paragraph 46A of Accounting Standard
for 'Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' {AS 11) which provided an alternative
accounting treatment whereby exchange differences arising on long term foreign currency
monetary items relating to depreciable capital asset can be addad to or deducted from the
cost of the asset and should be depreciated over the balance life of the asset.

Ind AS 101 includes an optional exemption that allows g first-time adopter to continue the
above accounting treatment in respect of the long-term foreign currency monetary items
recognised in the financial statements for the period ending immediately befaore the
beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting period as per the previous GAAP. The
Company has elected to avail this optional exemption, However, the capitalization of
exchange differences is not allowed on any new long term foreign currency monetary item
recognized from the first Ind AS financial reporting period,
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(xf)Leases:
The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease, The arrangement is, or contains,
a lease if fulfiliment of the arrangement is dependent en the use of a specific asset or assets
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or as5ets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangetment.

Company as a lessee
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease,

Leases are classified as finance leases whenevar the terms of the jease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases,

Finance lease:
Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Campany at their
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present vaiye of the minimum

lease payments, The corresponding liability to the lessor js included in the balance sheet asa
finance lease obligation,

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the |aase
obligation so as to achieve g constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
lability, Finance €Xpenses are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss,
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which casa they are capitalized in
accordance with the Company’s policy on borrowing cost. Contingent rentals are recognised
ds expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A ieased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no

reasonabie certainty that the Company will abtain ownership by the end of the lease term,
the asset is depreciated aver the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the

lease term, ‘.
C ey (L,
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Operating lease:

I respect of assets taken an Gperating lease, lease rentals are recognized as an expense in
the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis over the jease term unlessanother
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the benefit is derived
from the leased asset orthe payments to the lessor are structured to increasa in the line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cast
Increases,

{xii) Inventories
inventories are valued at the Jower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition, are accountad

for as follows:

*  Raw materials, stores and =pares: cost includes cost of purchase{viz. the purchase price,
importduties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the
entityfrom the taxing authorities), and transport, bandling and other costs
directlyattributahle to the acquisition and is net of tradediscounts, rebates and other
similar items) and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and conditian, Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

*  Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not
written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are
expected to be sold at or above cost.

¢ Spare parts, which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are
classified as inventory.

*  Fhished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour
and a proportion ofmanufacturing overheads based on the ngrmal operating capacity,
but excluding borrowing costs. Cost isdetermined on first in, first out hasic.

*  Traded goods: cost includes cast of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to thejr presentlocation and condition. Cost i determined on first in, first
out basis.
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Net realisable value is the estimated seliing price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Obsalete, slow maving and defactive Inventories are identified from time to time and, where
necessary, a provision is made for such inventories,

{xiii} Emp'oyee benefits
Short- term employee benefits:
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-tarm employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, social security
tantributions, short term compensated absences (paid annual leaves) etc. are measured on
#n undiscounted basis at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settied
and are expensed in the period In which the employee renders the related service.

Post-employment benefits ;
i) Defined contribution plan

The defined contribution plan is postemployment benefit plar under which the Company
contributes fixed contribution to 2 government administered fund and will have no
cbligation to pay further contribution. The Company’'s defined contribution plan comprises
of Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance Scheme and Labour Welfare Fund. The
Company's contribution to defined contribution plans are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which employee renders the related service.

i) Defined benefit plan

The Company’s obiigation towards gratuity liability is funded to an approved gratuity fund,
whicth fully covers the said liability under Cash Accumulation Policy of Life Insurance
Corporation of india (LIC). The present value of the definad benefit obligatians is determined
based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. The rate used to
discount defined benefit ohligation is determined by reference to market yields at the
Balance Sheet date on Indian Government Bonds for the estimated term of obligations.
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The amount recognised as ‘Emplayee benefit expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss js
the cost of aceruing employee benefits promised to employees aver the current year and
the costs of individual events such as past/future service benefit changes and settlements
{such events are recognised imme diately in the Statement of Profit and Loss).

The amount of net interest expense calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the
net defined benefit liability or asset is charged or credited to ‘Finance costs’ in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Re-measurement of net defined henefit lfability/ asset pertaining to gratuity comprise of
actuarial gains/ losses (i.e. changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting fram experience adjustments and effects of thanges in actuarial assumptions), the
return on plan assets (excluding interest} and the effect of the asset ceiling {if any, excluding
Interestland is recognised immediately in the balance shaet with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss account in subsequent periods.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations:

The liabilities for earned leave that are nat expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
are measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected
unit credit mathod. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the
reporting period that have terms approXimating to the terms of the related obifgation,
Remeasurementsas a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Accumulated leave, which is expected to
be utifized within the next 12 months, is treated as short term employee benefit,

{xiv} Government Grant:

Government grants are recognised only when there is reasonable assurance that the
Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them and the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss an a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are

intended to compensate. ;
b }{
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Accordingly, government grants :

a) related to or used for assets ara included in the Balance Sheet as deferred income and
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the usefuyl life of the
dssets.

b) related to an expense item is recognised as income on a systematic basis gver the
periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are axpensed.

In the unlikely event that a grant previously recognized is wtimately not received, it is
treated as a change in estimate and the amount cumulatively recognised is expensed in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company is not required to spend towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as per
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, since there is no average profit in the last 3 years
calculated as per the provisions of the Act.

(xv) Taxation
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax and includes any adjustments related to
past periods in current and/or deferred tax adjustments that may become necessary due to
certain developments or reviews during the relevant period.

Current income tax:

Tax on income for the current periad is determined on the basis of taxable income (or on the
basis of book profits wherever mintmum alternate tax is applicable} and tax credits
computed in accordance with the provisions of the (ncome Tax Act 1881, and based on the
expected outcome of assessments/appeals.

Current Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted orsubstantively enacted, at the reporting
date in the countries where the tompany operates and generates taxable income.,

f
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Lurrent income tax relating to items recognised, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, is also recognized in other comprehensive incame or in equity, as
appropriate and not in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Managemant pericdically evaluatas
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which appliicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a Jegally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the
liability on a net basis.

Deferred tox:

Deferred tax is provided using the liahility method on temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes
at the reporting date,

Detferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

* When the deferred tax iiability arises from the initial recagnition of goodwill or an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

* In respect of taxable temporary differences assaciated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

* Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses &unabsarbed tax depreciation,
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it ic probable that taxable profit will
be avaitable against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

*  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible tem porary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss,

: /
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* In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probakle that the temporary differences wil!
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can ba utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will he available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised defarred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has bacome
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settied, based on tax rates (2nd tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Ceferred tax relating to items recognised cutside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes reiate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

Deferred Tax Assets inciude Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax
laws In India, which is likely to give future economic ben efits in the form of avaiiability of set
off against future income tax liability. Accardingly, MAT is recagnised as deferred tax assets
in the Balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the
future economic benefit associated with the asset will he realised.

' Ay f&
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{xvi} Provisions and contingencies
Provisions:
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present abligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that zn outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its
present value using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks spercific to the obligation. When discounting is used,
the increase in tha provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain, The expense relating to any provision is presented in the income statement
net of any reimbursement.

Contingencies:
Contingent liahilities
A contingent fability is:

* 2 possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the eccurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company, or

* apresent obligation that arises from past events but is not recognisedbecause :
= it is not probable that an cutfiow of resources embaedying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation: or
—the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but disclasad uniess the contingency is remote.

4 (L o -’f( .
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Contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past avents and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Contingent assets are not recognisedbut are disclosed when the inflow of economic henefits
is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognized.

(xvii)Segment Reporting
Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial
infarmation is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in
daciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance.

The Company is primarily engaged in manufacture of sclar cells and meodules. The
Company's Chief Dperating Decision Maker [CODM) is the Managing Director. He evaluates
the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on analysis of varigus
performance indicators by geographical areas only. Accordingly, there is no operating
segment or reportable segment as such.

(xviii} Related party
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the reparting entity and it includes ;
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family if that person:
(i} has control or joint controf over the reporting entity;
{ii} has significant influence over the reporting entity; ar
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent
of the reparting entity.
{b} An entity is related to the reparting entity if any of the following conditions apply:
() The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same Group.
{ii} One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity.
{iii} Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
{v) The entity has a post-employment benefit plan for the bencfit of employecs of either
the reporting entity or an entity related to the re porting entity.

{vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in {a).
1 \ L ,LJ"
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{vii) A person identified in (a) (i} has significant influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity {or of a parent of the entity).

[viii} The entity, or any member of 3 Group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a persen are those family members who may beexpected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings withthe entity including:

{a) that person’s children, spouse or domestic partner, brother, sister, father

and mother;

(b} children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
{c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority andresponsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of theentity, directty or indirectly, including
any director fwhether executive orotherwise) of that entity.

Related party transactions and outstanding balances disciased in the financial statements
are in accordance with. the above definition as per Ind AS 24.

(xix} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short term deposits/investments with an original maturity of three months or less from the
date of acquisition, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These
exclude bank balances [including deposits) held as margin money or security against
borrowings, guarantees etc. being not readily available for use by the Company.

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and short term deposits and exclude items which are not available for general use as on the
date of Balance Sheet, as defined above, net of bank overdrafts which are rapayable on
demand where they form an integral part of an entity's cash management.

% (,k = ,‘ié»
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{xx} Cash Flow Statement:

statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and
financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method as
set out in ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows', adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

i. changes during the pericd in inventories and operating receivables and payables
transactions of a non-cash nature;

i non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign
currency gains and losszs, and

ili. ali other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

(xxi) Earnings per share:

The Basic Earnings per equity share {'EPS') is computed by dividing the net profit or loss after
tax before other comprehensive income for the year attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Ordinary shares that will be issued upon the conversion of a mandatorily convertible
instrument are included in the calculation of basic earnings per share from the date the
contract is entered into. Contingently issuahle shares are treated as outstanding and are
inciuded in the calculazion of basic earnings per share only from the date when all necessary
conditions are satisfied {i.e. the events have occurred).

Diluted earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss before OCI
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted
average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares (including options and warrants). The dilutive potential equity shares
are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair
value, Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the

period unless issued a: a fater date,
;
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Contingently issuable potential ordinary shares {such as contingently issuable convertible
instruments) are included inthe diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33, The
Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares {OCCRPS) issued by the
Company to Union Bank of India under Debt Settlement Agreement where the Bank bhas a
right to convert the preference shares into equity in the event of default are in fact
contingent convertible greference shares and the contingent settlement event is Event of
default by the Company. As the said event has not happened till the end of the reporting
period, exercise or conversion is not assumed for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings
per share and accordingly potential ordinary shares are not included in the calculation of
diluted earnings per share. Anti-dilutive effects are ignored.

{xxii) Events after Repaorting date:

Where events accurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that
existad at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the
financial statements. Where the events are indicative of conditions that arose after the
reparting period, the smounts are not adjusted, but are disclosed if those non-adjusting
events are material.

{xxiii) Exceptional tems:

An item of Income ar expense which by its size, type or incidence reguires disclosure in
order to improve an understanding of the performance of the Company is treated as an
exceptional item and the same is disclosed in the financial statements.

{xxiv) New and amended standards and interpretations: effective for the reporting period

Standards issued but not yet effective

In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs {the MCA), Government of India (Gol}
notified Ind AS 116 ‘lease’ and amendments in other Ind ASs and is applicable to the

Company with effect from April 1, 2013, _
\ A
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ind A5116 Leases:

Ind AS116 wilt replace the existing leases Standard, ind AS17 Leases, and related
Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the
lessor. Ind AS116 introduces a single lessee accounting mode! and reguires 2 lessee to
recognize assets and liailities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless
the under lying asset is of low value. The standard also contains enhanced disclosure
requirements for lessees.

ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17. The
standard permits twa possible methods of transition:
- Retrospectively tc each prior period presented applying Ind AS & Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

- Retrospectively, with the cumufative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at
the date of initiat application. Under this approach, the |essee records the |ease liability as
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental
borrowing rate and the right of use asset.

The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the financial
statements.

(#av)New and amended standards and Interpretations: Issued but not yet effective.

The Company is still evatuating the applicability and relevance of certain new standards &
Interpretations to existing standards issued, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance
of the Company’s financial statemenzts, on the Company’s operations and its impact on the
financial statements of the Company in terms of results, presentation or disclosure, Those
that may be relevant to the Company are set out helow. The Company shali adopt them, if
applicable, when they become effective.

Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the Ind AS 115,
nrevenue from Contract with Customers”. The core principle of the new standard is that an
entity should reccgnize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services 10
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration 1o which the entity expects to be

entitled in exchange for those goods or services, i
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Further, the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts with
customers. The standard permits following two

possible methods of transition: Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard
will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with
ind AS & - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors Retrospectively
with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial
application {Cumulative catch - up approach). The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115
is financial pericds beginning an ar after April 1, 2018. The Company is eyaluating the
requirements of the arnendment and the effect on the financial statements will be given in
due course,

Amendment ta Ind AS 12 "income Taxes”

The amendment to Ind AS 12 requires the entities 10 consider restriction in tax laws in
sources of taxable profit against which may make deductions on reversal of deductible
temporary differences (may or may not have arisen from same source) and also consider
probable future taxable profit. The amendment will come into force from April 1, 2018, The
Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial
staterments will be given in due course.

Amendment to Ing AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates"

Appendix B to Ind A5 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration: On
March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs {MCA} has notified the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix b to Ind A5 21, Foreign
currency transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in 3
foreign currency. The amendment will come into force from April 1, 2018. The Company is
avaluating the reguirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial stalements
will be given in due course. ]
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Indaseclar Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019
{All amounts in Rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)
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Non-current Current
5 Financlal asscts-Loans As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 31 As at 31
2019 201B March 21  March 2018
Unsecured, considered gooad
Security deposits 157.62 403.90 . -
Advance to employess - - - 477
157.89 403.90 - 4.77
Non-current Current
. As at 31 March  Ag at 31 March Asat 31 Asat 31
Other financial assets
2015 2018 March 2019 March 2018
Unsecured, considered goad
Deposits with banks remaini g maturity of more than - 50.00 -
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposit - 37.27 55.84 -
- 8227 55.84 »
Deferrad Tax Assets
Refer Note 31
Non-current Current
Other Assets As at 31 March  As at 31 March As at 31 Asat 31
2019 2018 March 2019 March 2018
Unsecured, considered goed
Capital advances 1,017.28 823.53 -
Balance with statutary/government authorities - - 63.32 632.02
Frepaid expenses - 0.17 2847
Advances far materlals and services - - 182.41 160.53
TOS Recetvable® 36.04 33,74
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Balance with stattory/government authorities - - - 24251
36.04 1,051.02 85945 1.063.53
Less : Provision for balance with - - - (24251}
36.04 1.051.02 86945 821.02
*Includes TRS for FY 201819
. h,
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Indosolar Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2015
{Al amourts in Rupees in lakh, unless othenyise stated}

9 Inventories As at 31 March 2019 As &t 31 March 2018
Raw matarial and components - 1,636.04
Finished poods* - 439340
Traded goods* - 76.08
Storgs, spares and other cosurmakblles 537.34 51418

537.24 2,665.61
Raw materia! and compononts
Particulars Cuartity Valua
Chemical tin Ltrs} 3478 a
Gas 4523 4
Paste (in Kgs) 9,765 a
screen [in Nos! 1,375 o
Wafer {in Nas) 40,350 Iy
Total 59,991 i)
Finished Goods
Particulars Quantity [Pes) WalLe
Multicrystalline Photovelta c sa'ar cell 21,218 o
Multicrystalline Photovolta.c sotar cell 5030 o
mMulticrystalline Photovoaic splar cell {Cut Cells) 137,819 o
Rejected Cell 157730 o
Module (3CF1) LE O
radidle (Malakpurt 330 0
Total 323,171 ]

*Since ol the above material has expired the present market value is zero as except immaterial scrap value which cannot be
determined as on date.

1D Trade receivakles [current) Asat 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Considered good, unless othervwise stated

Unsecured, coansidered goad 14,53 291.30
Linsecured, considered doubtful 354 8@ 248.10
368.39 533.40

Less : allawanes far doukeful trade receivahles {354.86) {244.10}
14.53 291.30

There are no trade receivables due from any director or any officer of the Company, either severally or jginty with any
other person, or from any firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Current
As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

11 Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balance in current account £6.89 290.15
Cashon hand 0.12 230
Deposits with ariginal matu rity of less than three months - -
67.01 29245
Current

12 Bank balances [ather than cash & cash equivalent)* As at 31 March 20128 As at 31 March 2018

Depaosits with bank with or gina maturities more than 12 months *¥#* 544 397.30
Deposits with bank with ar gina maturities mare than 3 months and less 100.00 510
than 12 months
405.11 402.40
Amount disclosed under non Current assets (refer note 6) - (50.00)
405.11 352.4)

* Deposits are in the nature of margin money pled@ed with banks. )
** As infarmation regarding original matunly is not avaitable, deposits are considered to be having original maturities more

than 12 months - : [
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Indosalar Limited
Motes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{all amaunts in Rupees in lakh, unless othenwise stated)

13(z} Equity share capital As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Authorized share capital Na. of Shares Amount Mao. of Sharas Amaunt
Eguity shares of R5.10 each 500,000,000 50,000.00 500,000,000 50,000.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares
Fquity shares of Rs.10 sach 372,167,116 37,206.71 372.067,116 37,206.71

13{b) instruments entirely equity in nature

Prefarence Shares As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

No. of Shares Amount MNo. of Shares Amount
Authorised share capital
Preference shares of Bs.40 cach 500,000,000 50,000,040 500,000,000 S0,000.00

ssued, subscribed and fully paid up shares
Compulsarily Cgnvertible Preferance shares of Rs.10 - - - -

The Campany has also issued 20,70,00,000 no. of optionally convertible cumubative redeermnable preference shares
[OCCRPS) of Rs. 10 each ¢n 27th May, 2017 which has been shown as Mon-Current Borrowings (being Rability).
Refar note 15

a Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

As ar 31 March 2019 Az at 31 March 2018
Equity shares Nb. of Skares Amount Ma. of Shares Amount
Ak the beginning of the year 372,067,116 37,206.71 358,130,000 35,813.00
Add - Shares issued during the year 13,937,116 1,393.71
Outstanding at the end of the year 372,067,116 37,206.71 372,067,116 37,207
Preference shares
1. Campulsorily Convertible Preference Shares
Al the beginning cf the year - - 9,500.00 a50.04
Add ; Shares issued duning the year - - - -
Less : Canversian into egaity share {9,500.00) an0.00)
At the end of the year . . - _

ii. Optianally Convertible Cunwilative Redeemalile
Preference Shares
Considered as tiability {refer note 15)
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b Term and rights attached to shares:

{i) Equity shares

The Company has onty a1e type of equity skare having par value of Re. 10. All shares rank pari passu with respect to
dividend, voting rights arud othar terms. Each sharehglder is entitled to one vote per share except, in respect of any shares
on which any calls or other sums payable have not been paid. The Cempany pays and declares dividends in Indian Rupees,
The dividend proposed, i© any, by the Board of directors is subject to approval of shareholders in the ensiting Annusl
Generzl Meeting. The repaymant of equity share capital in the event of liquidation and buy Back of sharas are possible
subject to prevalent regu ations. in the evant of liquidation, normally the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of ail preferential amounts, in prapartion to their sharehaolding.

fil} Preference shares

The Company had issued 9,500,000 rero coupon non-convertinle, nan- curmulative redeemable preference shares having
par value of Rs. 10 each per share in the year ended 31 March 2013, In the Annual General Meeting held on 30th
Septernber, 2015, tha sharchalders had approved change in terms of 9,500,000 zero coupon non-canvertible, non-
curmulative redeemable preference shares tg 9,500,000 compulsorily convertible preference shares 'TCPS'. "In-principhe”
approval from stock exchanges had been received on 16 October 2015 and an 4 April 2016 from MSE and BSE respectively,
Accordingly, on & April 2016, the Company changed the terms of preference shares sLbpect to the condition that the
mentioned 9,500,000 carpulsorily convertible preference shares [ocked-in for & period of one year from the date of
allatment. The said CCPS were converted into B7,31,617 equity shares @ 10.EB per equily share {including premium of Rs,
088 per share] on Z27th May, 2017, The preference shareholders will have right of dividend or to vote at the General
heeting of Equity Sharehc/ders after the conversion into equity shares.

¢ Particulars of shareholders helding mere than 5%

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

% of tntal % of tataf
Mo, of Shares sharesin the Na. of 5Shares sharesin the
clasgy .. . __ ..flass.

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Hulas Rzhul Gupta 80,385,494 22.61% 80,385,494 21.61%
Greenlite Lighting Corporation 74,446,551 20.01% 74,448,551 20.01%
Late Bhushan Kumiar Gupta 56,500,001 15.19% 56,500,001 15.19%

Preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
a. Compulsarily Convertible Preference Shares

k. Dplionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable
freference Shares
Congidered as liability (refer nate 15)

¢ Agegregate number of share issued for cons.deration other than cash, bonus shares issued and shares bought back during
the pericd of five years im nediately preceding the reporting period:

Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Equity shares allotted as Tully paid up pursuant ta

\ j i - - 13,937,116.00
eontrasts without payment being received -ncash ®

Equity shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - -
Equity Shares bought back by the company - - -

* Also refer note {by(i) above. _TL [
[
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Indosolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2819
(Al amounts in Rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

14 Other Equity

Equity Companent of Interest free loans from Promoters
Reserves and Surplus :

Securities Premium

Retained Earnings

Total reserves and surplus

Tatal

Nature and purpose of reserves

a.} Security Pramium

As at 21 March

As at 21 March

209 2018
384.24 384.24
22,230.14 22,230.14
{157,869.53} (105,474,085}
{135,739.45} (83,243.91)

{135,355.21)

(82,859.67}

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium

Reserve, This can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b.} Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any distributions paid to the
shareholders, The same can be utilized by the Company in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013.

\
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Indosoizar Limited
Notes to the financiai statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amounts in Rupees in lakh, urless otherwise stated)

Man-current Current
17  Provisions As at 31 March Asat 31 As at 31 March  As at 31 March
2019 March 2018 2019 2018
Provision for employee benefity
{refer note 36 & 45}
- Provision for gratuiky - - 042 1.03488
- Praviston for compensated absences 4879 48.79 17.83 17.83
48.79 48.79 13.25 18.86

18 Current borrowings As at 31 March  Asat 31 March
{Refer note 45) 2019 2013
From Banks {secured)

Cash credit loans repayable on demang 2,165.64 2,165 84

Short term horrowings 1,315.81 1,326.87

Buyers credit* - -

Unsecured

Loan from related party [refer note 34) 75.57 53.69
35857.02 354620

¥ Againstimport of Plant and Machinery to be paid out of Priority Term Loan.

19 Current financial liabilities - Trade payables {refer Note 45) As at 31 March As at 31 March

2019 2018
- Total {f'L.I'ESTHndII'Ig dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 8,483.80 6,110.97
enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 39] 86.95 126.08
8,570.75 6,237.05
20 Current - Other financial liabilities As at 31 March  As at 31 March
2019 2018
{Refer Note 45)
Current maturities of bank borrowings {Refer note 15) 78,717.76 47,988.41
Current maturities of finance lease obligations (Refer note 15] 8.63 &.63
interest accrued and due on long terrn borrowings - -
Interestl accrued and due on short term borowings/current maturity of long term 30.490.05 27,454.49
borrawings
Others*
-Creditor far capital goods 615.73 3,361.75
-Safary,wages and bonus pavable 157.68 127.54
-Gther payable 57175 573.38
110,561.10 79.524.20
* Provisions has been made io the extent irformation available
As at 31 March  As at 31 March
2019 2018
21  Other current liakilit/es
Revenue received in advance 67315 95.00
Advance from customers
Others: 20.10 20.30
Interest accrued and due on MSMED parties {Refer Note 39) 0.43 11.26
Tax deducted at source payable 80.12
Other stawtory dues payable
693.69 206,68
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Indoszalar Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees in lakh, uriless othenyise stated)
2% PRevenue from cperations

Sale of product

Sale of products - finished prods
Sale of products - traded goods
Sale of products

Other operating revenur
acrap sale

Cells Convarsion Job work
Export Incentive Earned

Break -up of revenue from sale of products
Salar cells
Solar module

23 Otherincome

Interestincome an
a) Financhal assets held at amortised cost
Fived deposits with baks
Others
b} Others
Interest on service tax refund

Other non operating Income

Met gain on foreiga currency transaction and transiation

Profit/ iLoss) on sale of fixed assets

FrovisionsfLiabifities no lanper required written back

Frovision for doubtful debts written back

24 Cost of material consumed

Inventary at the beginning of the year
Add; Purchases

Lees: Purchase return

Less 1 Inventory at the ent of te year
Cost of row material consumerl

2> Purchase of steck in trade

Purchase of stock in trade (solar modutles)

135

For the yeear ended  For the year ended 31
31 March 2019 March 2018

373.23 26,225.494

44E.36 4,475.15

1319.59 31,301.09

277 36.38

- 12.25

- 62.65

2.77 111.22

1,322 35 31,412 37

873.23 26,825.94

446.36 4.475.14

1,319.59 31,301.08

For the yaar ended

For the year ended 31

31 March 2015 March 2018
30.67 31.72
2172 4815
- 95939
- 238.42
{10.29}
248 .49 .
- 1247
290,49 431.15
For the yearended  for the year ended 31
31 March 20149 March 2018
1,636.04 82130
1,151.00 22.392.73
164502 -
- 1,636.04
1,142.02 215772.99
For the year ended  For the year ended 31
31 March 2019 March 2018
92 98 4.401.591
9z.92 4,401,584

il'.
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Indpsolar Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2015
(All armounts in Rupees in lakh, unless otherwise stated)

26

F¥

28

29

Change in inventories of finished goods and traded goods

tnventories at the beginning of year
- Finished goods
- Traded goods
Inventories at the end of year
- Finished goods
- Traded goods
Decrease/{increase) during the year

Employee benefit expenses

salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and cther funds {refer note 36faly
Gratuity expenses frefer note 3i(h))

Saff welfare expenses

Finance ¢osts

&, Interast
£. On Finandial liabilities ;
-Bank borrowings
-Other
il On Uawinding of discount resulting in ingrease i linancial
liabifities
Interest free loan from promnotes
-lnterest an QCCAPS
iii. On Finance cost on finance lease obligaticn
fv, Net interest on net defined benefit lizbility (Rafer Nate 36)
b. Other borrowing cost

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on tangible gssets
Amertisation an intangible assets
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For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

March 2014 fMarch 2018

43230 2,305.34

76,05 120.35

438,30

- 75.04

515.3% 1.910.30

Forthe yearended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2019 March 2018

395.11 1,203.18

24.46 105.91

2727 26.49

§.15 122.09

455.99 1,457.67

Forthe year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2014 March 2018

3.337.07 4551.41

7.80 220,97

48 &l 83,89

161077 35426

B.03 £.63

197

. B 37 130.81

5.063.04 5,351.54

for the year ended 11

For the year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018 _
2.403 22 1,806,232
447 4.36
2,413.60 2,810.58




Indosolar Limitad
Notes o the financial statements for the vear ended 32 March, 2019
{All amaunts in Rupees in lakh, untess otherwica stated)

30 Other expanses

* MisceManous expenses Inc udes;

availahble

For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

March 201% March 2018

Advertisement and sales promotian 11.87 _-’H’?
Sefling and distribution BAPCNSES 35.44 24487
Fuel and power 250.898 1.716.00
Equipment rental charges .20 7.86
l.oading and unloading charges 14.97 104.02
Spares and consumakles 41.13 54647
Consumabtle stores - 22164
Travel and conveyance 16.64 8302
Profossional Expenses 110.05 dB3 .35
Auditor's remuneration {refer nate 35} 15.15 2026
Rent 0.60 6.GB
Insurance 12.17 B1.00
Commumnicalion 11.05 .70
Repair and maintenance -

- Plant and machinery B3 146,31

- vehicle 12.03 a5 84

-Others 13.66 44909
Rales and tanes B 24 14.89
Pravision for scrvice tax not recoverahle
Provision for doubtiul debts :
Bad debts written off 60.18 1321
Service tax not recoverable written off 21.60 12258
Miscellaneous expenses® 118.70 208.79
Lxpenses Written off 3.68
Provision for doubtful debts 798,61
Net Loss on foreign currency tramsaction and transtation 366 .

1,581.92 4,203.34

Prepaid Expenses written off for Rs. 34.49 lakh for which cxpense wise bifurcaticn is not
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Indosalar Limited

Motes to the Financlal Statements For The Year Ended 31 March 2019
{ allarnounts in Rupees in lakh, Unless Otherwise Stated]

31.03.2018 31.03.2018
2 INCOME TAX
A Components of tax expense (income) recognised in profit ar loss include:
Current tax axpense:
Ircome tax of earlier years - 2.32
Tatal Current tax expanse - 2.32
Deferred tax {incamelfexperse:
Relating to origination & revarsal of temparary differencas - -
Total Deferred tax expense/lincome} - -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss - 2.32
B Components of tax expense (incame] recognised in statement of OC); 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Deferren tax relared toitems reccgnised in OCI during in the vear: -

Deferred tax charged 1o OCt -

The Campany did not recogn se deferred tax assets in respect of tax Igsses carryforwards, unabsorbed tax depreclation
carryforwards, provision and allov/ances and ather timing differences as the future profit streams were not probable.
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Indosalar Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31 March 2019
(all amounts in Rupees in La kh, Unless Otherwisa Stated}

44 Use of estimates and jud zements

The preparation of financial stataments in canformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind
AS requires management to riake estimates and assurmnpticns that affect the reported amounts of assets and
fiabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations during the report.ng peried end. Although these estimates are based upon management’s hest
knowledge of current events and actions, historica! experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are beliaved to be reasonable, actual results could differ from these estimates. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized inthe period in which the estimate is revised if the reviston affects only that period, orin the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

A Significant judgements in app lying aceounting poticies

The judgemerts, apart from those involving estimations {see note below), that the Company has made in the

pracess of applyingits accounting policies and that have 3 significant affect on the amounts recognized in these
finzncial statements pertain to:

(i} Determinaticn as to whether Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeeamable Preference Shares
(OCCRP3) issued by the Company is a financial liabitity, equity or a compound/hybrid financial
instrument in terms of Ind AS 32 and Ind AS 109:

As part of the Deb Settlement Agreement pursuant to One time Settiement (OTS) with Union Bank of
India ("'Bank’}, the Company has issued 1% Optionalty Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares {QCCRPS) which are redeemable in 16 quartesly installments cormmencing from 20.06.2024 and
ending on 31.03.2028 in lieu of the conversion of part of the loan amounting to Rs. 20,700.00. |n case
of an event of default by the Company in timely repayment/redemption as defined in the said
Agreement and the Company’s failure to remedy/correct the default within 60 days of default, the Bank
has a right to convert the preference shares into equity at a Conversion Price, being higher of par value
and market value of th= aquity share in accordance with SEBI formula.

The OCCRPS is considered a contingent convertible preference shares which means it is an instrument
that is convertible, at the option of the holder, only an the occurrence of a contingent event outside of
the control of the holder or the issuer. If the contingent event occurs then the holder has the option,
but not the obligation, to convert, If the contingent event does not cccur, then the instrument will be
settled in cash at maturity/due dates,

If a contingent settlenient provision is regarded as outside the control of the issuing entity, the
instrument is classified as a liability by the issuer. If a contingent settlemnent provisian is regarded as
within the contrel of the reporting entity, the instrument will be classified as equity, provided that it
has no other features requiring its classification as 2 liability and that the contingent settlament event
is also outside the control of the holder,

in the aforesaid case, the contingent settlement event is Event of default by the Company which is not
within the issuet’s 'the Company's) control and the exercise of the conversion eption would result in
the exchange of a variaale number of the tssuer's own equity instruments.
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The Campany, the issuer of the instrument does not have the unconditionai right to aveid delivering
cash or another financial asset {or otherwise to settle it in such a way that it would be a financial
liability). Accordingty, the management has concluded that it is & financial liability of the Company,

()  Gainfloss on inital recognition and
measuremeant of DCCRPS:

The fair value of t1ese preference shares fOCCRPS) at initial measurement s corputed as the present
value of all future cash payments discountad bzsed on discounting rate using the rate of interest
applicable on the remaining loans by the bank, The difference between the fair value and transaction
amount at initial measurement has been recorded as a gain in the Statement of profit and loss, as the
fair value has been computed based on valuation technigues, which uses data from observabla
markets. Significant judgement is invalved in assessing whether all the data used for valuation has been
derived from ohservalle markets and it has been determined that use of certain unobservable data
{minot adjustmen-s to observable data to match the term, interest rate, credit risk and other factors of
preference shares! in these valuations are insignificant to the entire initial gain. Acco rdingly, the entire
initial gain on initiz measurement has baen recognized upfront as Gain on modification of loan (treated
as extinguishment) to the statement of profit and |oss,

(ill)  Efigibility of capita! subsidy:

Inthe matter of the Company’s claim for eligibility of capital subsidy under SIP scheme of Gowt, ofindia,
the Special Leave petition (SLP) filed by the Department of Electronics and Information Technalogy
(DEIT) against the order of the How' bie High Court of Delhi has been dismissad by the Hon'ble Supreme
court vide its order datied August 25, 2017. DIT has since initlated the process of appraisal of the subsidy
claim af the Company,

According to Ind A% 20: Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance;
Government grants, including nen-monetary grants at fair value, shall not be recognized until there is
reasonable assurarce that:

{2} the entity will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and

{b) the gramts will be received.

A3 the appraisal of subsidy claim is still pending, the management, in the absence of the reasonable
assurance, has not recognized the claim for capital su bsidy in accordance with g AS- 20.

(v} Going concetn;

The Company has continued to incur significant losses in the current year resuiting in further arosion
of its net worth. The Campany has a negative net worth amounting to Rs. 98148.49 a5 on 315t March
2019. The Companvy’s current liabilities exceeds the cu rrent assets by Rs. 121451.53 as on 31st March

2019. The Compary’s term loan payable to various lender banks become non-performing assats.
Further, QTS scheme approved by Union Bank of India has been revoked. These conditions/factors raise
significant doubt ak-out the Company's ability to continue as a going congern,

q\ (_j y /f;,f*’“’fﬁ
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The company is under Corparate Insolvency Resolution Process [CIRP) under Insolvency and Ba hkruptcy
Code. 1ts affairs, business and assats are being managed by the Resolution Professiana appointed by
the Hon'ble NCL™ New Delhi vide jts order dated 12 April 2019 under the prowisians of the Code as
Interim Resolutivn Professional and subsequently as per section 22 of the Code as Resolution
Professional of Irdosolar Limited. Invitation for expression of interest has been issued by Resolution
Professional on 03.07.2019 as a result of which two Resolution Plans has heen received by him which
are under consideration.

Considering the above and in expectation of the successful outcome of the above proposals, The
management bel'eves and has concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the accourts on going
concern basis,

The financial statements do not include ny adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification

of carrying amounts of the assets and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the
Company be unatie to continue as a gaing concern,

{v] teasehold jand:
The Company has entered inta an arrangement for lease of land from government entity, Significant
Judgement is involved in assessing whether such arrangement is in the nature of finance or operating
lease. in making such an assessment, the Company considers various factors which includes whether
the present vaiue of minimum lease payments amount to at least substantially all of the fair value of
lease assets, renewal terms, purchase option, sub-lease options etc. Based on evaluation of above
factors, lease is evaluated for the purpose of treating in the nature of finance fease.

B. Keyscurces of estimation
uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reportirg period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets anc! liabilities within the next financial year :

(Y  Impairment of trade receivables:
The impairment pravisions for trade receivables are based on lifetime expected credit loss based on a
provision matrix. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of 2 financial instrument. The provision matrix takes into
account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected
credit loss allowanze is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and the rates used in the
provision matrix.

{i) Export Obligations/ Net Foreign Exchange Earning (NFE} :
Being an Export Or.ented Unit, the Company needs to achieve positive NFE during a period of 10 vears
from the start of comrerciat production. Till date the Company has spent Rs. 190,962.43 in foreign
currency for Raw Material consumption, Stores & Spares and Expenses in fareign currency including
amortization of all imported Plant and Machinery and the Company has earned foreign currency
gquivalent to Rs. 210,102.81 as per para 6.5(f} of FTP resulting into positive NFE Rs. 19,140.38 as on
March 31, 2019 without considering amortization of imported Plant and machinery, pending
installation /tommissioning {disclosed as CWIP), In case the Company also amartizes value of Line-C till
date (commercial production is yet to start) the Company’s NFE will become negative to the extent Rs.

39,624.58. ;
A c PN
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(iii) lmpairment of prope rty plant and e

quipment including

under installation:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment to datermine whether there 15 any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. fany such indicatian exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimatad in order
to determing the axtent of the impairmant loss (if any).

Recoverable amo unt is the higher of fair valye less costs to sell and vaiue in use. Value in use is usually
determined on the basis of discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves managermant
estimates on ant cipated commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory
environment, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes
in the above-mentionid factors could impact tha carrying value of assets.

Inrespect of Proparty. Plant and Equipment (PPE} including under instaliation (disciased under CWIR),
the management has performedan assessment of impairment of carrying value of PPE. The assBssment
has been done taking nto consideration the market value of assets determined by using the Valuation
Report of Valuer. The value used ts Gross Value calculated by Valuer, As per such assessment, the
management has determined recoverable value of the assets and has recognized an impairment loss
of Rs. 22857.99 in the value of Plant and Machinery, Rs. 1904.99 in the value of Building and Rs.

18056.14 lakh in t e carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment {CWIP} during the financial year

2018-19.
Building Carrying Value .
as on 30-09- Carrying Market Value Impairment
Value
2018
Factory 5788.20 4206.89 1581.31
Nan- Factory 1184.79 261.11 323.68
Tatal 6972.99 5068.00 1904.89
Plant & WMachinery Carrying Value .
a5 on 30-09- Carrying Market Value Impairment
Value
2018
Plant & 31901.34 9043.35 2285799
Machinery
Capital Work in
Progress 26354.20 8292.65 18056.14
Total 58256.13 17342.00 40914.13
' ‘ L R ;
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{iv)

(v)

{vi)

fwii)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments:

In estimating the fair valye of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses market-
Observable data to the extent it js available. Where active market quotes are not available, the
management applies valuation technigues to determine the fair value of fimancial instruments. This

Involves developing estimates, assumptions and judgements consistent with how market participants
would price the instrument.

Actuarial Valuation:

The determination of Company’s lfability towards defined bernefit obligation viz. gratuity and other
long-term employes henefit obligation viz. long term tompensated absences to employees is made
through indepenclent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss and in other comprehensive income. Such valuation depend upon
assumptions determined aftar taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other reievant
factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market. Infarmation about such
valuation is proviced in notes to the financial statements,

Claims, Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:

The Company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties, Where an
outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can
be made based on management’s assessment of specific tircumstances of each dispute and relevant
external advice, management provides for its best estimate of the liability, Such accruals are by nature
complex and can take number of years to resolve and can involve estimation uncertainty. These
estimates could chanpe substantially over time as new facts emerge and gach dispute progresses,
Information about such litigations is provided in notes to the financial statements.

Defarrad Tax :

In assessing the realizaliility of deferred tax assets the management of the Company estimates whether
the Compary will earn sufficient taxable profit in future periods. The ultimate realization of deferred
tax assets is dependen: upon the generation of future taxablo incorme during the periods in which the
temporary differerces become deductible.

The Company did rot recognize deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses carryforwards, unabsorbed
tax depreciation czrry forwards and others, as there are mate rial uncertainties and the future profit
streams are not yel probable to claim set off,

Unabsorbed tax depreziation can be claimed for an infinite period and the Business losses can be
carried forward for a period of 8 years as per tax regulations.

S
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{viii)  Useful lives of propearty, plant and equipment and intangible assets ;

As described in the significant atcounting policies, the management determines and also reviews the
estimated usefu lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each
reporiing period. Such lives are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the assets
and also their Jikely economic life, based on various internal and external factors including relative

efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly, depreciabie lives are reviewed annually using the best
information availabie to the management,

45 Corporate Insolvency Resolution Proces:

a6

As per order of Hon'ble N ZUT New Deihi dated 12 April 2019 under the provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptey
Code, the compa ny is under Corporate Insolvency Resalution Process (CIRP). Its affairs, business and assets are
being managed by the Resolution Professional. As per the code the RP has to receive, collate and reconcile all
the chaims submitted by te creditors of the company. Such claims can be admitted by the RP during the CIRP,
till the approval of a resolution plan by the C.0.C. The RP has verified and admitted the cfaims submitted by the
creditors against the corm Jany as perthe Code, The summary of claims filled by finaneial creditor, operational
creditors end employees and admitted by resolution professional as on 11 Decermber 2019 are as follows:

a) Financial Creditors: Rs, 2,13,791 49

(including Bank of Baroda: Rs. 25918.78, Corporation Bank: Rs. 35576.49, ARCIL: Rs. 49574.13, Union Bank of
India: Rs. 98322,09)

b} Operational Creditors: Rs. 4,360.36

c} Employees*®: Rs. 256.81

* A litigation has been file by 49 employees of the company for a claim of Rs, 399.49 with the Labor Court at
Noida (UP}. However, most of the said employees has also filed their claim with Resolution Frofessional {RP)
which was admitted by RP on merits and details of which are availabla on website of co mpany.

Pending finalization of resolution plan, the impact of such claims if any have not been considered in the
preparation of the financizl statement.

Noncurrent and Current assets are disclosed in the balance sheet at their carrying value, however, since the
company is under CIRP, it is not possible to derive at which value assets can be realized.

RP has sent mails a2nd letters for recovery to trade receivables. However, most of them had not responded or
they have been rejected tre claims on them,

Nan adherence of ND AS

A.] Due to insufficient staff and non-availability of information, foliowing IND AS and their disclosures
requirements could nct be adhered:
IND A5 19 Employee Benafits
NG provision has been made for gratuity as on 31st March 2019, However, gratuity has been provided gn
the basis of actuarial vzluation done 25 on 30th September 2018.

B.} No provision for earned leave has been made dy ring the year:
Disclosures regarding defined benefit gratuity plan, their assets, sensitivity analysis, maturity profile of

defined benefit obligat.on, expected contribution for the next annual reporting pericd and other related
information could not te provided. >

NG e
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47

43

L.} INTYAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates:
Unrealized Foreign Exchange gain/loss have not becn booked an foreign creditors and Capital Advances

D) IND AS 37 Provisions, Conmtingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets;
Company is in defaul® of various company law and secretarial non compliances which can lead 1o various
penalties under various laws, These penaltics has not been quantified and provided in the books

E} Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments and Inct AS 113 Fair VYalue Measurements:
Complete Disclosures for above IND AS has not been provided,

Significant Non - Adjusting Events after the Balance sheet Date: The company is under Corporate Instlve ncy
Resolution Process {CIRP) vide order of Hon'ble NCLT New Delhi dated 12 April 2012 under the provisions of
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. (Refer Point Mo .45)

Note 11048 form an integral part of the balance sheet of the company.
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